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1 

Key Performance Indicators  
 

 

Business Indicators  (in thousands ): 
 

 

RGUs:         Convergent RGUs: 

   

+2.6%

7,254 7,213 7,215 7,296 7,445

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14    

72
212

556

1,008

1,488

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14   
 
 

Mobile Subscribers :     Pay TV: 

 

3,238 3,243 3,288
3,397 3,536

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14

+9.2%

   

1,546 1,518 1,493 1,474 1,470

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14

(5.0)%

 
 
Fixed Broadband :     Fixed Voice: 

 

916 922 927 935 957

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14

+4.5 %

   

1,539 1,515 1,491 1,472 1,465

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14

(4.8 )%

 



 

 

9M14 Consolidated Management Report   5/ 126 

 

 

 

 

IRIS Subscribers:      IRIS Subscribers as % of 3P&4P: 

 

390
438

499
561

633

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14

+62.2 %

   

48.2%
54.3%

61.7%
69.2%

76.6%

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14

+28.4pp

 
 

 

3P&4P Subscribers:     %3P&4P Subscribers : 

 

810 806 808 811 826

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14

+2.0%

   

66.4% 66.9% 68.0% 69.2% 70.9%

3Q13 4Q13 1Q14 2Q14 3Q14

+4.5pp
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Financial Indicators  (millions of euros ): 
 

 

Operating Revenues :     EBITDA (EBITDA Margin -  % of revenues ): 

 

1,070.5 1,030.1

9M13 9M14

(3.8 )%

   

418.3 397.0

39.1%
38.5%
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9M13 9M14

(5.1)%

 
 

 

 

Net In come :      CAPEX: 

 

76.5

62.4

9M13 9M14

(18.4 )%

   

184.3 192.6

4.5

39.3188.8
231.9

9M13 9M14
Recurrent CAPEX Non Recurrent CAPEX

+22.8 %

 
 

 

 

EBITDA  Recurrent CAPEX:    Net Financial Debt  

        Net Financial Debt  / EBITDA 

234.0

204.3

9M13 9M14

(12.7)%

   

957.2 956.8

1.7x

1.9x

02x
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(0.0 )%
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2 

Highlights  First Nine Months  2014  
 

 

Operational Highlights

Total RGUs (Net Adds) (103.3) 232.2 n.a.

Convergent RGUs  (Net Adds) 71.6 1,275.3 n.a.

Mobile (Net Adds) (67.1) 292.4 n.a.

Pay TV (Net Adds) (47.4) (48.4) 2.0%

IRIS Subscribers (Net Adds) 155.5 195.6 25.8%

Convergent RGUs 71.6 1,487.7 n.a.

Convergent Customers 15.6 303.3 n.a.

Convergent Customers as % of Fixed Access Customers 1.3% 23.8% 22.5pp

ARPU / Unique Subscriber With Fixed Access (Euros) 37.3 37.7 1.1%

Financial Highlights

Operating Revenues 1,070.5 1,030.1 (3.8%)

Telco Revenues 1,021.4 986.0 (3.5%)

EBITDA 418.3 397.0 (5.1%)

EBITDA Margin 39.1% 38.5% (0.5pp)

Net Income 76.5 62.4 (18.4%)

Free Cash Flow Before Dividends & Financial Acquisitions 81.0 58.0 (28.4%)

9M14 9M14 / 9M139M14 Highlights 9M13

 

 

¶ Very strong o perational trends d riving market share growth and sequential improvement in 

core telco  financial performance ; 

 

¶ New  record qu arter s of growth in RGUs with net adds of 149.6  thousand  in 3Q14, up from 80.3 

thousand in 2Q14 ; 

 

¶ Acceleration in pace of growth of core convergent services reaching  1.488  million  convergent 

RGUs at the end of 9M14, with  1.275 million  net adds ; Convergent customers increased to  

23.8%, as a proportion of the fixed customer base ; 

 

¶ Significant quarterly improvement in Pay TV net losses to 4.7 thousand  in 3Q13, with just 6.1 

thousand negative net adds in the fixed access Pay TV base to 1.166 million, and with p ositive 

net adds of 1.4 thousand in the DTH base . Net losses of Pay TV customers in 9M14 were 48.4 

thousand;  
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¶ Mobile net adds of 292.4  thousand in 9M14 driven by continued strong growth of 422.5 

thousand post -paid services, primarily integrated in converge nt residential offers;  

 

¶ IRIS  achieved record quarter s of growth in all 3 quarters of 

9M14, with  additional 61.0 thousand , 62.7 thousand and 71.9 thousand  subscribers  , reaching 

76.6% as a percentage of the 3&4P subscriber base; 

 

¶ Strong growth in Corporate segment with major new accounts won in 9M14. Increased 

financial impact of commercial success to come through during 2015;  

 

¶ Sequential quarterly improvement in yoy financial results  throughout 9M14 ; Consolidated 

Revenues declined by 3.8% with a significantly lower quarterly decline in Telco Revenues of 

3.1% to 332.3 million euros . In 9M14, Operating Revenues amounted to 1,030.1 million euros in 

9M14, also posting a yoy decline of 3.8%;  

 

¶ In 3Q14, Consolidated EBITDA posted a  smaller sequential yoy decline of  4.6% and the  yoy 

decline in Telco EBITDA reduced  to 4.3%. In 9M14, Consolidated EBITDA declined 5.1% yoy to 

397 million euros;  

 

¶ Recurrent FCF grew by 16.0% when compared with 9M13  to 113.7 million euros.  
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3 

Governing Bod ies 
 

As at 30 September  2014, the Governing Bodies of NOS had the following composition : 

 

Board of Directors  

  

Chairman of the Board of Directors  Jorge de Brito Pereira  

  

Chairman of the Executive Committee  

 

Members of the Executive Committee  

Miguel Al meida  

 

José Pedro Pereira da Costa, Vice-President, CFO  

Miguel Veiga Martins, Vice -President, CTO  

Ana Paula Marques 

André Almeida  

Manuel Ramalho Eanes 

  

Members  Ângelo Paupério  

António Lobo Xavier  

António Domingues  

Catarina Tavira  

Cláudia Azevedo  

Fernando Martorell  

Isabel dos Santos  

Joaquim de Oliveira  

Lorena Fernandes  

Mário Leite da Silva  

Rodrigo Costa  

  

Chairman of the Fiscal Board  

 

Members  

 

 

Alternate  

Paulo Cardoso Correira da Mota Pinto  

 

Eugénio Ferreira 

Nuno Sousa Pereira  

 

Luís Filipe da Silva Ferreira 

 

Officials of the General Meeting of Shareholders  

  

Chairman  Pedro Canastra de Azevedo Maia  

  

Secretary  Tiago Antunes da Cunha Ferreira de Lemos  
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Statutory Auditor  

  

In Office  ERNST & YOUNG AUDIT & ASSOCIADOS, SROC, S.A., 

(ROC nr 178, CMVM registry nr 9011 ), represented by 

Ricardo Filipe de Frias Pinheiro (ROC nr 739) 

  

Alternate  Paulo Jorge Luís da Silva (ROC n.º 1334) 
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4 

Corporate Developments  

 

In September 2014 NOS announced an agreement to acquire Mainroad - a leading IT and datacentre  

management company operating in Portugal since 2003, with a long history of relevant partnerships 

and common clients with NOS . Mainroad  provides  application, systems and networks support, design 

and technological infrastructure implementation and manageme nt for its clients.  ICT is a key area of 

the Corporate and SME segments whilst leveraging  strong convergent footprint to grow, 

particularly in the fi xed voice, data and services markets.  The acquisition of Mainroad  will enable NOS 

to secure a presence in this segment in a much shorter time to market by acquiring an operation that 

has a very complementary infrastructure and commercial profile. Important datacentres 

are co-

has significant experience with key corporate accounts.  

 

ting Revenues of 15.4 million 

euros  which would represent a contribution to NOS consolidated accounts of 10.6  million euros,  and 

EBITDA of 1.96 million  euros . Mainroad was acquired for a cash consideration of 14 million euros 

representing a post synergy EV /EBITDA multiple of 5.6x.  
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5 

Management Report  
 

5.1. Business Review  

 

Convergent take up continues to be the strongest driver of operational success. With the launch of the 

new brand on 16 May, commercial momentum accelerated significantly with record gro wth in the 

number of households taking convergent solutions and in RGU growth, leading to market share 

growth.  

 

All operational and commercial efforts are now able to be channelled into a single brand, and teams are 

able to focus on ramping up commercial d eployment and restructuring operations in the merged 

entity. Results measured to date from the new brand launch are well ahead of expectations with total 

brand awareness of almost 100% and association of NOS´ name with all core services of over 90%.  

 

Almos t 1.5 million convergent RGUs, 48% qoq growth in 3Q14  

 

NOS has already reached 1.488 million convergent RGUs at the end of 9M14, representing an 

additional 1.275 million  convergent RGUs in the period . With the brand launch in May, a number of 

additional co nvergent offers were launched to address a wider range of market segments using more 

flexible pricing points and value propositions.  

 

including a lower end  Pay TV solution (126 channels), 30 Mbps fixed internet, unlimited fixed voice and 

1 mobile SIM card with unlimited voice and SMS.  

 

for a promotional price of  79.99 euros, adding a 5GB mobile broadband offer. Further tiering the 

 (Pay TV, fixed voice 

for 29.99 euros) 

providing a convergent option for all market segments and pockets.  

 

Led by the convergent DTH/4G offers as a means of providing integrated TV, fixed and mobile 

broadband and voice, the number of DTH convergent offers posted significant gro wth. With this offer, 

NOS has clearly become a much more competitive operator in regions where previously it was only 

able to provide satellite TV services and has subsequently been able to win back customers, stabilizing 

and even posting marginal growth i n the DTH customer base.  

 

In total, the number of mobile cards incorporated in convergent bundles grew by 509.5 thousand in 

9M14. The average number of cards per convergent customer declined slightly to 1.9, compared with 2 

in 1H14, reflecting an increase in the weight of convergent offers with just one SIM card, due to the 

launch of NOS Quatro Light, Três and Dois during 2Q14 and 3Q14.  
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-device TV interface IRIS is a key driver of our TV and entertainment strategy 

and is today the default interface for all NOS offers. All quarters  of 9M14 represented  record growth 

for IRIS, with a further 61.0 thousand, 62.7 thousand and 71.9  thousand IRIS net  adds to 633 thousand , 

bringing penetration of the 3&4P fixed subscriber base to 76.6%, up from 48% in 9M13. IRIS has 

become the default TV service for all new NOS services and usage has become mainstream with over 

100 million interactions per day, over 60 thousand streams at peak time and 125 thousand unique 

accesses to the Youtube player, amongst others.  

 

At the end of June, NOS launched its  the main  differentiating 

features of our award winning IRIS TV interface  providing the best and most  innovative TV 

experience available with automatic recording  capabilities , multiscreen and multidevice viewing and 

the most recent launch of the Youtube player  over IRIS.  

 

The automatic recording  feature enables customers to  catch up on their favourite co ntent and return  

to the start of any programme - content is available for 7 days, with over 10 thousand titles 

automatically recorded, a feature also available over  IRIS Online. The online platform  also enables IRIS 

customers to programme recordings on the  set top box, return to the start of a programme, see film s 

in the  videoclub and access automatic recordings.  

 

NOS continued  to improve the IRIS interface and integrate innovative new features and apps  in 9M14. 

A new software release was launched, IRIS 3.2 , enabling HTML5 based apps and improved navigat ion 

and the IRIS online platform became an integral part of the offer for DTH customers. Some of the most 

recent apps launched during 2Q14 were the World Cup 2014 with a complete interactive events 

timeline a nd a new games  app for old favourites such as Pacman, Tron, and Sokoban, amongst others.  

 

Already in 3Q14, NOS also introduced the Youtube player over the IRIS platform allowing the best 

internet content to be played directly over the TV interface, with fu ll screen viewing, advanced search 

functionalities, related  video access when watching TV or even to watch one of the Youtube channels 

content line up during the quarter, an interactive app for the Portuguese Football League and the 

 

 

NOS leads in customer satisfaction in  Portugal  ECSI Portugal Customer Satisfaction S urvey  

2013 

 

ve just been distinguished by the Portuguese 

public as the best in the country in the ECSI Portugal 2013  National Customer Satisfaction Index. 

reveals each year what the favourite goods and services of the Portuguese consumer are in various 

business sectors. NOS ranks leader in overall customer satisfaction compared to the other pay TV 
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operators scoring 7.39 points on a scale from 1 to 10, 7.94 points for mobi le voice services and 7.50 

points in fixed voice.  

 

Continued strong growth in mobile net adds driving gains in market share  

 

The growth in convergent bundles continues to drive strong growth in the mobile customer base of 

9.2% yoy to 3.536 million subscrib ers. In 3Q14, NOS mobile net adds accelerated to 139 thousand 

mobile net adds , which compares with 108.7 thousand in 2Q14 and 45 thousand in 1Q14, a total of 

292.4 thousand net adds in 9M14 , reflecting a net increase in the post -paid base of 422.5 thousand  and 

a net decline in the pre -paid base of 130.1 thousand. The momentum behind convergent take up is 

leading to a structural shift in market shares in the mobile market and with consumers preferring post -

paid all-you -can-eat contract bundles, associated ty pically with 24 month loyalty periods. At the end of 

9M14 less than 60% of consumer mobile services were pre -paid, compared with 71% in 9M13, a 

reduction of 11 pp yoy. The attractiveness of including mobile services into convergent bundles 

derives primaril y from the higher mobile usage plans available, with unlimited mobile calls and sms.  

 

Smartphone penetration is posting significant growth, as is the case of mobile data. Smartphones are 

now approximately 30% of the handset base at NOS and this is supporti ng very significant growth in 

mobile data traffic, up by close to 80% year on year to 30 GB (70% over 4G).  

 

Commercial success in Large Corporate segment with major new accounts won in 9M14  

RGU growth in SoHo and SME market improving albeit repricing of backbook, particularly 

mobile, driving revenue erosion  

 

RGUs in the business segment are showing good performance, up 6.3% yoy to 1.023 million, led by 

growth in Pay TV services of 13.8% to 72 thousand, of 12.5% in Fixed Broadband services to 96.6 

thousand  and of 6.8% in mobile services to 664.7 thousand. The underlying characteristics of the large 

Corporate, SME and SoHo segments are structurally different, with the latter being affected by the 

spill -over effect of convergent pricing trends in the resident ial market. The launch of the NOS brand in 

May made a significant contribution to the ramp -up of commercial momentum in the SME and SoHo 

sales channels enhancing the NOS value proposition and making relationship s with customers much 

more streamlined . 

 

In the large Corporate segment, a number of very important accounts were won in the financial 

services and public administration sectors, amongst which it is worth highlighting Caixa Geral de 

Depósitos (the largest bank in Portugal, 100% state owned), Montepio  Geral bank and the Ministry of 

Health. As from 2015, the impact of these accounts will start to be felt on Revenues and Service 

Margin, as and when these new customers are installed, a process that tends to take between 6 -9 

months.  
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Telco (1)

Aggregate Indicators

Homes Passed 3,228.5 3,243.2 3,252.4 0.7% 0.3% 3,228.5 3,252.4 0.7%

Total RGUs 7,253.7 7,295.6 7,445.2 2.6% 2.1% 7,253.7 7,445.2 2.6%

Mobile 3,237.9 3,397.1 3,535.8 9.2% 4.1% 3,237.9 3,535.8 9.2%

Pre-Paid 2,304.0 2,127.1 2,120.9 (7.9%) (0.3%) 2,304.0 2,120.9 (7.9%)

Post-Paid 934.0 1,270.0 1,414.9 51.5% 11.4% 934.0 1,414.9 51.5%

ARPU / Mobile Subscriber (Euros) 10.0 9.2 9.7 (2.9%) 5.1% 9.8 9.4 (4.3%)

Pay TV 1,546.2 1,474.3 1,469.6 (5.0%) (0.3%) 1,546.2 1,469.6 (5.0%)

Fixed Access (2)
1,219.8 1,172.3 1,166.1 (4.4%) (0.5%) 1,219.8 1,166.1 (4.4%)

DTH 326.4 302.1 303.5 (7.0%) 0.5% 326.4 303.5 (7.0%)

Fixed Voice 1,539.0 1,472.5 1,464.6 (4.8%) (0.5%) 1,539.0 1,464.6 (4.8%)

Broadband 916.3 934.5 957.3 4.5% 2.4% 916.3 957.3 4.5%

Others and Data 14.2 17.2 17.9 26.4% 4.4% 14.2 17.9 26.4%

3P&4P Subscribers 810.0 810.7 826.4 2.0% 1.9% 810.0 826.4 2.0%

% 3P&4P 66.4% 69.2% 70.9% 4.5pp 1.7pp 66.4% 70.9% 4.5pp

Convergent RGUs 71.6 1,007.7 1,487.7 n.a. 47.6% 71.6 1,487.7 n.a.

Convergent Customers 15.6 201.7 303.3 n.a. 50.4% 15.6 303.3 n.a.

Convergent Customers as % of Fixed Access Customers 1.3% 16.5% 23.8% 22.5pp 7.2pp 1.3% 23.8% 22.5pp

IRIS Subscribers 390.3 561.3 633.2 62.2% 12.8% 390.3 633.2 62.2%

IRIS as % of 3P&4P Subscribers 48.2% 69.2% 76.6% 28.4pp 7.4pp 48.2% 76.6% 28.4pp

Net Adds

Homes Passed 15.2 (12.3) 9.1 (40.2%) (174.4%) 42.9 10.5 (75.5%)

Total RGUs 12.7 80.3 149.6 n.a. 86.3% (103.3) 232.2 n.a.

Mobile 34.4 108.7 138.7 n.a. 27.6% (67.1) 292.4 n.a.

Pre-Paid 19.8 (34.4) (6.2) n.a. (81.9%) (104.4) (130.1) 24.6%

Post-Paid 14.6 143.1 144.9 n.a. 1.2% 37.3 422.5 n.a.

Pay TV (22.9) (19.0) (4.7) (79.5%) (75.2%) (47.4) (48.4) 2.0%

Fixed Access (2)
(13.7) (17.1) (6.1) (55.5%) (64.3%) (17.8) (37.6) 112.1%

DTH (9.2) (1.9) 1.4 n.a. n.a. (29.7) (10.8) (63.8%)

Fixed Voice (10.4) (18.8) (7.9) (23.7%) (57.8%) (18.8) (50.4) 167.9%

Broadband 11.1 7.5 22.8 105.8% 205.6% 28.6 35.2 23.2%

Others and Data 0.5 1.9 0.8 56.9% (61.2%) 1.5 3.4 123.9%

3P&4P Subscribers 4.1 2.3 15.7 280.8% n.a. 18.8 20.5 9.1%

Convergent RGUs 37.3 451.9 480.0 n.a. 6.2% 71.6 1,275.3 n.a.

Convergent Customers 7.7 86.3 101.6 n.a. 17.7% 15.6 258.0 n.a.

IRIS Subscribers 51.6 62.7 71.9 39.3% 14.7% 155.5 195.6 25.8%
(1) Portuguese Operations

9M13 9M14 9M14 / 9M133Q14 / 3Q133Q13

(2) Fixed Access Subscribers include customers served by the HFC, FTTH and ULL networks and indirect access customers.

3Q14Operating Indicators ('000) 2Q14 3Q14 / 2Q14
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Telco 
(1)

Indicators per Segment

Consumer

Total RGUs 6,290.6 6,279.4 6,421.8 2.1% 2.3% 6,290.6 6,421.8 2.1%

Unique Subscribers With Fixed Access 
(2)

1,202.4 1,127.0 1,114.6 (7.3%) (1.1%) 1,202.4 1,114.6 (7.3%)

Pay TV 1,483.0 1,406.5 1,397.6 (5.8%) (0.6%) 1,483.0 1,397.6 (5.8%)

Fixed Access 1,169.9 1,118.4 1,109.7 (5.1%) (0.8%) 1,169.9 1,109.7 (5.1%)

DTH 313.1 288.1 288.0 (8.0%) (0.1%) 313.1 288.0 (8.0%)

IRIS Subscribers 380.4 544.4 615.3 61.7% 13.0% 380.4 615.3 61.7%

Broadband 844.7 858.9 878.7 4.0% 2.3% 844.7 878.7 4.0%

Fixed Voice 1,347.4 1,281.1 1,274.3 (5.4%) (0.5%) 1,347.4 1,274.3 (5.4%)

Mobile 2,615.5 2,733.0 2,871.1 9.8% 5.1% 2,615.5 2,871.1 9.8%

% 1P 15.5% 14.0% 12.4% (3.1pp) (1.6pp) 15.5% 12.4% (3.1pp)

% 2P 18.4% 18.5% 17.1% (1.2pp) (1.4pp) 18.4% 17.1% (1.2pp)

% 3P&4P 66.1% 67.9% 70.5% 4.4pp 2.5pp 66.1% 70.5% 4.4pp

ARPU / Unique Subscriber With Fixed Access (Euros) 36.5 37.8 38.5 5.4% 1.8% 37.3 37.7 1.1%

Net Adds

Total RGUs 8.2 64.7 142.3 n.a. 120.0% (127.2) 186.0 n.a.

Unique Subscribers With Fixed Access (16.5) (32.1) (12.4) (24.9%) (61.3%) (27.0) (68.7) 154.3%

Pay TV (22.1) (22.7) (8.9) (59.9%) (61.0%) (45.6) (57.9) 27.1%

Fixed Access (13.4) (19.8) (8.7) (34.8%) (56.1%) (17.1) (44.6) 160.6%

DTH (8.7) (2.9) (0.1) (98.3%) (94.9%) (28.5) (13.3) (53.2%)

IRIS Subscribers 50.9 59.6 70.9 39.4% 18.9% 152.2 189.1 24.2%

Broadband 11.4 5.1 19.8 74.2% 290.4% 28.8 28.8 (0.1%)

Fixed Voice (9.4) (18.2) (6.7) (28.3%) (62.9%) (21.2) (49.9) 135.8%

Mobile 28.3 100.5 138.1 n.a. 37.4% (89.2) 265.1 n.a.

Business

Total RGUs 963.0 1,016.1 1,023.5 6.3% 0.7% 963.0 1,023.5 6.3%

Pay TV 63.2 67.8 72.0 13.8% 6.1% 63.2 72.0 13.8%

IRIS Subscribers 9.9 16.9 17.9 81.0% 5.9% 9.9 17.9 81.0%

Broadband 85.8 92.8 96.6 12.5% 4.1% 85.8 96.6 12.5%

Fixed Voice 191.5 191.4 190.2 (0.7%) (0.6%) 191.5 190.2 (0.7%)

Mobile 622.5 664.1 664.7 6.8% 0.1% 622.5 664.7 6.8%

ARPU per RGU (Euros) 26.7 23.2 21.6 (19.1%) (7.2%) 26.6 23.4 (12.3%)

Net Adds

Total RGUs 4.5 15.6 7.3 62.4% (53.1%) 23.9 46.2 93.3%

Pay TV (0.8) 3.7 4.2 n.a. 11.1% (1.8) 9.5 n.a.

IRIS Subscribers 0.8 3.1 1.0 27.0% (67.6%) 3.2 6.5 99.9%

Broadband 0.2 4.3 3.8 n.a. (12.6%) 1.3 9.8 n.a.

Fixed Voice (1.0) (0.6) (1.2) 22.2% 90.7% 2.4 (0.5) n.a.

Mobile 6.1 8.2 0.6 (90.7%) (93.1%) 22.1 27.3 23.7%
(1) Portuguese Operations

9M13 9M14 9M14 / 9M13

(2) Fixed Access Subscribers include customers served by the HFC, FTTH and ULL networks and indirect access customers.

Operating Indicators ('000) 3Q13 3Q14 3Q14 / 3Q132Q14 3Q14 / 2Q14
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Fixed access subscriber base showing positive inflection through the quarte r 

 

Pay TV subscribers posted a marked improvement in 3Q14 recording net losses of just 4.7 thousand 

compared with 19 thousand in 2Q14  and 24.7 thousand in 1Q14 (a total of 48.4 thousand in 9M14) . 

Breaking out aggregate net -adds between fixed access and DTH , the latter posted positive net growth 

in the quarter of 1.4 thousand , despite still being negative in 9M14 with 10.8 thousand net losses . The 

much reinfo rced competitive performance in these geographies due to the launch of convergent 

DTH/4G offers  mid -2Q14. The level of negative fixed access net adds posted a very significant 

improvement to 6.1 thousand from 17.1 thousand in 2Q14  and 14.4 thousand in 1Q14 , reflecting the 

end of the impact of merger remedies as discussed in previous quarters and the build up in commercial 

momentum following the launch of the NOS brand and new convergent offers.  In 9M14, Fixed Access 

Pay TV net losses were  37.6 thousand. Fixed Broadband services net -adds also grew to 35.2 thousand, 

an increase from 28.6  th ousand in 9M13.  

 

RGU growth driving residential ARPU increase  

 

Fixed access residential ARPU increased 1.1% yoy to 37.7 euros as a result of the strong convergent 

RGU growth . This volume growth is helping to offset like for like price pressure being felt in the market 

due to aggressive competitor promotions in the stand alone triple play market.  

 

Improvement in ARPU per mobile SIM card is also sufficing  at the end of 9M14,  with qoq growth of 

5.1% in 3Q14to 9.7 euros and with a clear improvement in yoy decline to just 2.9 % compared with 6% 

in 2Q14 and in 1Q14. These improving trends show that the  substantial growth in convergent post -

paid contract customers is helping to miti gate the underlying revenue pressure felt in stand -alone 

mobile consumption.  In 9M14 ARPU per Mobile Subscriber declined by 4.3% to 9.4 euros.  

 

ARPU per RGU in the business segment  continues to post a negative trend due to the impact of 

backbook repricing in the SoHo and SME segment affected by the read across from prices in the 

residential segment and with the increasing shift to convergent solutions.  

 

Network rollout  

 

NOS  network rollout programme to reach an additional 550 thousand households, is on tra ck, with 

the preparatory survey, licencing and infrastructure roll -out in progress. In 9M

number of households passed by 10.5 thousand with the pace of activation of new locations set to 

accelerate significantly in the coming months.  Commercial success in new areas covered is proving 

very positive and ahead of initial expectations.  
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Cinemas and Audiovisua ls 

 

Cinema (1)

Revenue per Ticket (Euros) 4.7 4.7 4.7 (1.0%) (0.4%) 4.7 4.7 0.4%

Tickets Sold 2,413.5 1,676.6 1,924.4 (20.3%) 14.8% 5,956.3 5,196.7 (12.8%)

Screens (units) 209 209 214 2.4% 2.4% 209 214 2.4%
(1) Portuguese Operations

9M14 / 9M13Operating Indicators ('000) 3Q13 3Q14 9M13 9M143Q14 / 3Q132Q14 3Q14 / 2Q14

 
 

In 9M 12.8% to 5.197 million tickets, which compares 

with a decline in like -for -like, total market tick et sales of 15.5%1, adjusted for the reopening of several 

screens by another operator. The ticket sales decline is exp lained mainly by the fact that 9M14 was 

less rich in terms of blockbusters than 9M The Gilded Cage   both 

accounted for more  tic kets sold of the top film of 9M  

 

The most successful films shown in 9M Lucy Rio 2 The Wolf of Wall Street Twelve 

Years a Slave Maleficent  

 

NOS opened the first IMAX® DMR - Digital 3D screen in Lisbon  in June 2013. This premium cinema 

experience continues to prove  very successful, having already achieved a total of around 148 thousand 

spectators so far , in its first 15 months of operation . 

 

During 3Q14, NOS has taken over the management, at the Forum A lgarve shopping centre, of 5 new 

cinema screens, which have been equipped with digital technology, 3 of which 3D -enabled. As such, 

NOS Cinemas now has 214 screens in total.  

 

Average revenue per ticket sold improv ed yoy  by 0.4 %, to 4.7 euros  in 9M14.  

 

Sales of 3D movie tickets were lower  yoy in 9M14 as a proportion 

close to 8%, whereas they had represented close to 11% in 9M13. This proportion is lower than in the 

past due primarily to the lower number of movies in 3D and to customers choosing more lower -cost 

2D alternatives.  

 

Despite the yoy 12.4% decrease in gross box -office revenues in 9M14, NOS continues to maintain its 

leading market posit ion, with a market share of 61.5% in terms of gross revenues in 9M14. As a result  

of the abovementioned lower ticket sales, total Cinema Exhibition revenues decreased by 11.8% yoy in 

9M14 to 35 million euros . 

 

Revenues in the Audiovisuals division posted  a slight  decline of  2.1% to 42.4  million euros in 9M14. 

Revenues were impacted pri marily by the decline of cinema tickets sold in the Portuguese market and 

also by a tough comparison with 9M cinema distribution  revenues w ere 

supported by the strong performance of the main 3 cinema blockbuster s The Gilded 

                                                 
1 Source ICA  Portuguese Institute for Cinema and Audiovisuals  
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Cage   which w ere distributed by NOS. Of the to p 10 cinema 

box-office hits in 9M14, NOS distributed 6 Lucy The Wolf of Wall Street Twelve Years a Slave

Maleficent Noah  Transformers: A ge of Extinction therefore maintaining its strong leading 

position with a 60% market share in terms of gross revenues.  

 

ZAP 

 

ZAP has become a reference operator in Angola and Mozambique, in Africa and in the industry, as its 

operations continue to be ver y successful. ZAP maintains its focus on continuing to expand its sales 

channels, increasing its presence in these territories. Therefore, it has opened seven new store s in 

9M14, three in Angola ( Caxito -Bengo,  Soyo-Zaire, and Dundo -Lunda Norte ) and four in  Mozambique 

(Tete, Beira, Nampula and Cabo Delgado - Pemba). ZAP now has 29 own stores in Angola and 9 in 

Mozambique.  

  

ZAP also continues to differentiate from its competition in these countries by improving its products 

and services, in order to meet the  highest expectations from its customers. During 9M14, ZAP added 

five  new channels to its packages, CMTV, a generalist channel which broadcasts a wide range of 

television genres from sports to international economics, politics, celebrities and fashion and Sporting 

TV, a channel targeted to Sporting fans that broadcasts exclusive sports content  

Football Academy, rep orts, forums, and other formats; SIC Caras, which takes a specialised look at the 

world of national and international celebr ities, with a programming offer covering several television 

genres: news, reports, analysis, interviews, debates, talent shows, fiction, documentaries, magazines, 

auditorium programmes, talk shows, major events and special broadcasts ; STV Notícias, a 

Mozambican news channel produced by STV, one of the free access channels in Mozambique; and 

Cubavision . 
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5.2. Consolidated Financial Review  

 

The following Consolidated Financial Statements have been subject to limited review. As standard 

practice, only the ann ual accounts are audited; the quarterly results are not audited separately.  

 

 

Consolidated Income Statement  

 

 

Operating Revenues 361.6 345.0 347.8 (3.8%) 0.8% 1,070.5 1,030.1 (3.8%)

Telco 342.9 330.2 332.3 (3.1%) 0.6% 1,021.4 986.0 (3.5%)

Consumer Revenues 216.1 204.8 205.9 (4.7%) 0.5% 656.0 618.2 (5.8%)

Business Revenues 102.4 98.1 99.1 (3.2%) 1.1% 296.2 293.4 (0.9%)

Equipment Sales 9.4 8.9 12.3 31.4% 38.3% 24.5 29.4 20.1%

Others and Eliminations 15.0 18.4 15.0 0.2% (18.6%) 44.8 45.1 0.6%

Audiovisuals 14.0 14.2 14.0 (0.1%) (2.0%) 43.3 42.4 (2.1%)

Cinema 
(1)

15.8 11.4 12.8 (18.7%) 12.1% 39.6 35.0 (11.8%)

Others and Eliminations (11.0) (10.9) (11.3) 2.8% 3.7% (33.8) (33.3) (1.5%)

Operating Costs Excluding D&A (221.7) (211.3) (214.4) (3.3%) 1.4% (652.3) (633.2) (2.9%)

W&S (24.5) (18.7) (21.4) (12.8%) 14.0% (71.5) (61.1) (14.5%)

Direct Costs (106.4) (100.5) (99.7) (6.3%) (0.8%) (305.9) (296.9) (2.9%)

Commercial Costs  (2) (24.0) (21.8) (31.7) 32.2% 45.6% (66.2) (76.2) 15.2%

Other Operating Costs (66.8) (70.4) (61.6) (7.8%) (12.4%) (208.7) (199.0) (4.7%)

EBITDA 139.9 133.6 133.4 (4.6%) (0.1%) 418.3 397.0 (5.1%)

EBITDA Margin 38.7% 38.7% 38.4% (0.3pp) (0.4pp) 39.1% 38.5% (0.5pp)

Telco 129.4 124.9 123.8 (4.3%) (0.8%) 392.0 369.1 (5.8%)

EBITDA Margin 37.7% 37.8% 37.3% (0.5pp) (0.6pp) 38.4% 37.4% (0.9pp)

Cinema Exhibition and Audiovisuals 10.5 8.8 9.6 (8.7%) 9.4% 26.3 27.9 5.9%

EBITDA Margin 39.0% 37.4% 39.5% 0.4pp 2.1pp 35.0% 39.7% 4.7pp

Share of results of associates and joint ventures 0.7 2.7 4.0 n.a. 48.7% 2.3 11.6 n.a.

EBITDA including results of associates and joint ventures 140.6 136.3 137.5 (2.2%) 0.8% 420.6 408.6 (2.9%)

Depreciation and Amortization (83.5) (86.2) (81.5) (2.3%) (5.4%) (252.6) (251.6) (0.4%)

(Other Expenses) / Income (32.8) (12.6) (18.3) (44.3%) 44.7% (34.1) (33.7) (1.1%)

Operating Profit (EBIT) (3) 24.3 37.5 37.6 54.8% 0.4% 134.0 123.2 (8.0%)

(Financial Expenses) / Income (18.3) (14.2) (14.9) (18.5%) 5.1% (52.9) (44.2) (16.4%)

Income Before Income Taxes 6.1 23.3 22.8 275.2% (2.4%) 81.1 79.0 (2.6%)

Income Taxes 12.5 (4.8) (4.0) n.a. (16.5%) (4.0) (16.1) n.a.

Income From Continued Operations 18.6 18.5 18.8 0.8% 1.3% 77.1 62.8 (18.5%)

o.w. Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests (0.2) (0.1) 0.0 n.a. n.a. (0.6) (0.4) (28.5%)

Net Income 18.4 18.4 18.8 2.0% 1.9% 76.5 62.4 (18.4%)
(1) Includes operations in Mozambique.

(2) Commercial costs include commissions, marketing and publicity expenses and costs of equipment sold.

(3) EBIT = Income Before Financials and Income Taxes. 

9M14 / 9M139M133Q14 3Q14 / 3Q13

* The merger by incorporation of OPTIMUS into ZON that led to the creation of ZON OPTIMUS (now NOS) was completed on 27 August 2013. Resulting primarily from the merger, in 3Q13 a number of accounting policies, practices and estimates have had to be aligned. The primary changes to accounting

policies, with the correspondent restatement of the prior period accounts were the capitalization of customer acquisition costs at ZON in order to align with policy also followed by other telecom operators and capitalization of certain movie rights in the audiovisuals division following IAS 38,

which were restated since 1Q12 in the statutory accounts. In addition and in anticipation of the mandatory implementation of IFRS11 as from 1Q14, whereby joint ventures may no longer be consolidated proportionately, NOS (formerly ZON OPTIMUS) has proceeded to deconsolidate the three joint

ventures in which it holds stakes, ZAP (30%), Sport TV (50%) and Dreamia (50%) and has restated prior period financial statements to reflect their recognition through the equity method. To facilitate comparison between current and prior period results for the new NOS (formerly ZON OPTIMUS), the

current pro-forma consolidated financial statements have been prepared, reflecting not only the statutory accounts restatement due to the changes to accounting policies, but also the consolidation of 12 months of results in 2013 (9 months in 9M13). The financial statements reflect the impact,

since September 2013, in depreciation and amortization of the provisional calculation of the fair value of assets and liabilities which was used for the purposes of purchase price allocation resulting from the consolidation of OPTIMUS. The present financial review is based on these pro-forma

financial statements. Appendix III to this report includes the statutory income statement for NOS (formerly ZON OPTIMUS).

9M14
Pro-Forma Profit and Loss Statement

*

(Millions of Euros)
3Q13 2Q14 3Q14 / 2Q14
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Operating Revenues  

 

Consolidated Operating Revenues  were 1,030.1 million euros in 9M14, representing a decline of 3.8%. 

Core Telco revenues posted a marked improvement in trend  in 3Q14,  with a decline of 3.1% to 332.3 

million euros yoy, up from 3.4% in 2Q14 and 3.9% in 1Q14 , supported by the positive operating 

momentum throughout 9M14.  

 

Important progress was recorded in Consumer revenues in 3Q14 with yoy decline improving 

sequentially to 4.7% c ompared with 6% in 2Q14  and 6.5% in 1Q14 . In 9M14, Consumer revenues 

declined by 5.8%. Drilling down into underlying trends, residential fixed revenues showed 

improvement throughout 9M14, having reduced by just 2%  yoy in 3Q14 and remaining  flat  in 

comparis on with the previous quarter. Behind this very marked improvement is the take -up of 

convergent offers together with residenti al ARPU growth and the fact that the pay TV base began to 

record a more positive quarterly performance. Wireless residential revenu es (satellite base) also 

posted a marked improvement in trend. Overall, c onsumer revenues were still negatively impacted by  

a decline in personal revenues, explained primarily by the structural shift from stand alone mobile 

services into convergent offers.  

 

Business revenues posted a 0.9% decline yoy in 9M14. The yoy decline results  from a combination of 

positive RGU performance which was more than offset yoy by the already discussed negative pricing 

environment mainly felt in the SoHo and SME market influe nced by convergent pricing t rends in the 

residential market, a trend which is starting to show quarterly improvement.  

 

Equipment sales also recorded a significant increase of 20.1% to 29.4  million euros, led by the effect of 

higher handset sales which was further boosted by the very proactive handset campaigns associated 

with convergent bundles launched in the past quarter.  

 

Revenues from the Audiovisuals business decreased slightly  by 2.1% yoy to  42.4 million euros 

however revenues generated by the Cinema business fell by 11.8%, a reflection of the period  for movie 

exhibition worldwide. NOS Cinemas outperformed the Portuguese market in terms of audience and 

gross box office revenues as previously explained in the operating review, maintaining a strong lead in 

market share of revenues of both movie exhibition and distribution.  

 

ZAP continues to post significant growth in revenues, on the back of the very strong operational 

34.6 % yoy to 44.4  million euros.  

 

EBITDA 

 

Consolidated EBITDA fell by 5.1% in 9M14 to 397 million euros generating a margin of 38.5%. Telco 

EBITDA fell by 5.8% in 9M14 to 369.1 million euros and EBITDA from the Audiovisuals and Cinema 

operations posted a yoy increase of 5.9% to 27.9 million euros.  The EBITDA of 

grew  by 64.4 % yoy to 17 million euros.  
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Consolidated Operating Costs Excluding D&A  

 

Consolidated Operating Costs fell by 2.9% yoy to 633.2 million euros.  

  

Wages and Salaries  fell by 14.5% to 61.1 million euros in  9M14 explained by headcount reduction since 

completion of the merger, primarily felt at the telecom operations.  

 

Direct Costs recorded a 2.9% decline to 296.9  million euros, which reflects a combination of lower yoy 

capacity costs ( -18%) and programming costs ( -8%), both of which impacted by savings already 

achieved from merger integration projects and also the lower level of premium channels sales in 

comparison with 9M13. 

 

Commercial Costs  posted an increase yoy of 15.2% to 76.2 million euros. The main i tem driving the 

growth in this item w as the cost of equipment sold due to the already discussed increase in handsets.  

 

Other Operating Costs  fell by 4.7% yoy to 199 million euros  in 9M14 , with savings achieved in 

maintenance and repair costs and supplies a nd external sevices, both of which driven mostly by 

integration led cost savings.  

 

Net Income  

 

Net Income  reached 62.4  million euros in 9M14, compared with 76.5 million euros in 9M13, a decrease 

of 18.4% yoy.  

 

Equity in affiliate companies  recorded a mater ial yoy improvement to 11.6 million euros in 9M14, 

compared with 2.3 million euros in 9M13. This increase is due to the yoy growth in financial 

contribution of the international JV, ZAP, which amounted to 12.2 million euros in 9M14 (compared 

with 4.9  milli on euros in 9M14) and which was marginally offset by a negative  contribution from other 

JVs of 0.6 million euros.  

 

Depreciation and Amortization posted a small yoy decline  of 0.4 % to 251.6 million euros . 

 

Other Expenses * of  33.7 million euros in 9M14 relat e to non -recurrent merger related costs and still 

include a very material contribution from the launch of the new brand, as well as other non -cash, non -

recurrent provisions.  

  

Net Financial Expenses fell by 16.4% to 44.2  million euros in 9M14 compared wit h 52.9 million euros in 

9M13 as a result of the lower average level of gross debt and the lower average cost  of the new debt 

contracted in 3Q14 . Net i nterest charges in 3Q14 were 9.3  million euros compared with 12.4 million 

euros in 3Q13. Additional saving s in net interest charges will materialize in coming month s due to the 

                                                 
* terial and unusual expenses that should be disclosed separately from usual line 

items, to avoid distortion of the financial information from regular operations, namely restructuring costs resulting from th e merger (including 

curtailment costs) as well as o ne-off non -cash items that result from alignment of estimates between the two companies.  
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175 million euros floating rate note issued in 3Q14 at a significantly lower cost to replace existing 

facilities, as explained ahead in the section on capital structure.  

 

Income Tax pro vision amounted to 16.1 million euros in 9M14 representing 20% of Income Before 

Income Taxes.  Effective Tax rate is lower than statutory tax rate due to the impact of net contributions 

from equity consolidated Joint Ventures and to tax incentive programmes .  

 

CAPEX 

 

Telco 53.2 63.4 59.8 12.4% (5.8%) 162.4 168.3 3.6%

Infrastructure 22.6 27.8 20.2 (10.6%) (27.4%) 67.5 60.6 (10.2%)

Customer Related CAPEX 28.7 34.8 35.1 22.1% 0.7% 89.2 99.0 11.0%

Other 1.9 0.8 4.5 138.2% n.a. 5.7 8.7 51.6%

Audiovisuals and Cinema Exhibition 6.9 8.4 8.3 19.2% (1.5%) 21.9 24.3 10.9%

Recurrent CAPEX 60.1 71.8 68.0 13.1% (5.3%) 184.3 192.6 4.5%

Non-Recurrent CAPEX 1.5 16.8 18.6 n.a. 10.7% 4.5 39.3 n.a.

Total CAPEX 61.6 88.6 86.6 40.6% (2.3%) 188.8 231.9 22.8%

Pro-Forma CAPEX (Millions of Euros) 3Q13 3Q14 3Q14 / 3Q13 9M14 / 9M139M13 9M142Q14 3Q14 / 2Q14

 
 

Recurrent CAPEX amounted to 192.6 million euros in 9M14, an increase of 4.5% yoy. Non recurrent 

CAPEX continues to grow every quarter as a result of additional network rollout and associated 

commercial activity which is accelerating as the new households become available for sale and also 

due to merger related integration projects.  

 

Audiovisuals and Cinema CAPEX of 24.3 million euros is related mostly with the capitalization of 

certain movie rights in the Audiovisuals division.  

 

As a percentage of Telecom revenues, recurrent Telecom CAPEX am ounted to 1 7.1% in 9M14 and total 

recurrent CAPEX represented 1 8.7% of Total Revenues.  
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Cash Flow 

 

EBITDA 139.9 133.6 133.4 (4.6%) (0.1%) 418.3 397.0 (5.1%)

Recurrent CAPEX (60.1) (71.8) (68.0) 13.1% (5.3%) (184.3) (192.6) 4.5%

EBITDA - Recurrent CAPEX 79.8 61.8 65.4 (18.1%) 5.8% 234.0 204.3 (12.7%)

Non-Cash Items Included in EBITDA - Recurrent CAPEX
(1) 

and 

Change in Working Capital 
(4.9) (10.1) (7.6) 54.2% (25.6%) (66.1) (53.4) (19.3%)

Operating Cash Flow After Investment 74.9 51.7 57.9 (22.8%) 12.0% 167.8 151.0 (10.1%)

Long Term Contracts (6.7) (4.2) (3.5) (47.3%) (15.4%) (18.2) (11.6) (36.2%)

Net Interest Paid and Other Financial Charges (17.0) (15.4) (6.7) (60.6%) (56.8%) (41.2) (35.9) (12.8%)

Income Taxes Paid (7.5) (0.3) 10.8 n.a. n.a. (11.1) 9.3 n.a.

Other Cash Movements 1.3 0.5 0.3 (74.0%) (38.2%) 0.7 0.9 40.6%

Recurrent Free Cash-Flow 45.1 32.3 58.8 30.4% 82.1% 98.0 113.7 16.0%

LTE Payments 0.0 0.0 0.0 n.a. n.a. (6.0) 0.0 (100.0%)

Non-Recurrent CAPEX (1.5) (16.8) (18.6) n.a. 10.6% (4.5) (35.7) n.a.

Cash Restructuring Payments (6.0) (3.9) (8.1) 35.8% 109.6% (6.5) (20.0) 206.7%

Free Cash Flow Before Dividends & Financial Acquisitions 37.6 11.6 32.1 (14.8%) 176.1% 81.0 58.0 (28.4%)

Foreign Currency Debt Exchange Effect (0.0) 0.0 0.1 n.a. n.a. (0.0) 0.1 n.a.

Acquisitions of Financial Investments 0.0 0.0 (14.0) n.a. n.a. 0.0 (14.0) n.a.

New Companies' Net Debt 0.0 0.0 0.6 n.a. n.a. 0.0 0.6 n.a.

Dividends 0.0 (62.0) 0.0 n.a. (100.0%) (62.0) (62.0) 0.1%

Total Free Cash Flow 37.6 (50.4) 18.7 (50.1%) (137.2%) 19.0 (17.4) n.a.

Debt Variation Through Accruals & Deferrals & Others (2)
1.0 4.7 (6.3) n.a. n.a. (5.5) 0.3 n.a.

Change in Net Financial Debt 38.6 (45.7) 12.4 67.9% n.a. 13.5 (17.1) n.a.

(2) Accruals of interest payments were reclassified to below Total Free Cash Flow in 4Q13 and prior period cash flow statements were restated to adjust for this reclassification.

9M13

(1) This caption includes non-cash provisions included in EBITDA.

9M14 / 9M13Pro-Forma Cash Flow (Millions of Euros) 3Q13 3Q14 / 3Q13 9M142Q14 3Q14 / 2Q143Q14

 
 

Operating Cash Flow after Investment  posted a yoy decline of 10.1% in 9M14 to 151 million euros. The 

yoy decline is due to the previously explained decline in EBITDA of 5.1% and the increase in Recurrent 

CAPEX of 4.5% to 192.6 million euros. Non -cash items included in EBITDA -CAPEX and Working Capital 

amounted to (53.4) million euros, an improvement in comparison with the (66.1) million euros posted 

in 9M13. 
 

Recurrent FCF  increased by 16.0% in 9M14 to 113.7 million euros despite the lower operating cash 

flow, due to seasonally lower interest payments and other financial charges, lower transponder 

payments yoy reflected in the LTC line  due to the savings achieved with the renegotiation of 

transponder contract terms at the end of 2012 , and a positive cash tax inflow due to recovery of 

 
 

Non -recurrent cas h impacts on CAPEX and OPEX in 9M14 amounted to 35.7 million euros  and 20 

mill ion euros, respectively , and were mainly related with cash payments within the context of 

additional customer driven and integ ration related CAPEX from the restructuring/merger process.  
 

Free Cash Flow before Dividends  and Financial Acquisitions  was 58 mil lion euros in 9M14. Adjusted 

for interest accruals and deferrals  on debt variations, net financial debt posted a n increase of 17.1 

million euros in 9M14.  
 

In 3Q14 NOS acquired Mainroad, a leading IT and datacenter management operator in Portugal for 14 

mi llion euros. The cash outflow relating to this transaction is reflected in acquisitions of financial 

investments.  
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Pro-Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet  

 

Current Assets 454.8 471.5

Cash and Equivalents 74.4 40.9

Accounts Receivable, Net 309.6 342.9

Inventories, Net 32.6 34.7

Taxes Receivable 11.8 7.5

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 26.4 45.6

Non-current Assets 2,475.0 2,448.7

Investments in Group Companies 31.6 30.9

Intangible Assets, Net 1,160.6 1,158.3

Fixed Assets, Net 1,096.8 1,094.8

Deferred Taxes 156.5 138.4

Other Non-current Assets 29.5 26.4

Total Assets 2,929.9 2,920.2

Current Liabilities 762.2 880.2

Short Term Debt 213.4 303.2

Accounts Payable 367.6 376.7

Accrued Expenses 129.9 154.3

Deferred Income 25.5 28.1

Taxes Payable 23.0 17.8

Current Provisions and Other Liabilities 2.8 0.1

Non-current Liabilities 1,107.4 991.9

Medium and Long Term Debt 928.2 811.9

Non-current Provisions and Other Liabilities 179.2 180.0

Total Liabilities 1,869.7 1,872.1

Equity Before Non-Controlling Interests 1,050.6 1,038.3

Share Capital 5.2 5.2

Issue Premium 854.2 854.2

Own Shares (2.0) (9.4)

Reserves, Retained Earnings and Other 129.8 125.9

Net Income 63.4 62.4

Non-Controlling Interests 9.6 9.9

Total Shareholders' Equity 1,060.2 1,048.1

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 2,929.9 2,920.2

Pro-Forma Balance Sheet (Millions of Euros)
2013 

restated
9M14
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Capital Structure  
 

At the end of 9M14, Net Financial Debt  stood at 956.8  million euros, representing an increase of 1.8% 

in comparison with t he end of 2013 and a decrease of 1.3% with the end of 1 H14. 
 

Total financial debt at the end of 9M14 amounted to 1,0 00 .1 million euros, which was offset with a 

cash and short -term investment position on the balance sheet of 43.4  million euros. At the end o f 

9M14, NOS also had 310 million euros of non -issued commercial paper programs. The all -in average 

5.05% at the end of 9M14.  
 

Net Financial Gearing  increased to 4 7.7% at the end of 9M14 compared with 47.0% at the end of  2013, 

and Net Financial Debt / EBITDA  (last 4 quarters) now stands at 1.9x.  
 

During 9M14 NOS completed a bond issue of 175 million euros, through a private offering, with a 6 

year term. These new Notes were issued together with the early redemption , of an existing bond 

(issued originally by Sonaecom in September 2011, and transferred to NOS following the merger) in 

2010-2014 Notes issued in November 2010 in th -2020 

notes will be fully redeemed at the end of the term in September 2020, the interest rate is floating with 

a spread of 215 bps, and the first coupon will be due in March 2015.   
 

The financing deals completed in  9M14 will start to have a very favourable  impact on the all -in average 

cost of debt going forward.  
 

The average maturity of  Net Financial Debt was significantly extended to  2.51 years. 
 

The total interest rate hedging operations in place at the end o f 9M14 amounted to 107 million euros. 

Taking into account the retail bonds issued in June 2012 and the EIB loan disbursed  in June 2014, both 

issued at a fixed rate  for a total of 200 million euros and 110 million euros respectively  the 

proportion of NO  44 %. 
 

Short Term 196.0 283.2 44.5%

Bank and Other Loans 187.5 274.8 46.6%

Financial Leases 8.6 8.4 (1.5%)

Medium and Long Term 821.7 716.9 (12.7%)

Bank and Other Loans 811.5 705.2 (13.1%)

Financial Leases 10.1 11.8 16.3%

Total Debt 1,017.7 1,000.1 (1.7%)

Cash, Short Term Investments and Intercompany Loans 78.0 43.4 (44.4%)

Net Financial Debt 939.7 956.8 1.8%

Net Financial Gearing (1) 47.0% 47.7% 0.7pp

Net Financial Debt  / EBITDA 1.8x 1.9x n.a.
(1) Net Financial Gearing = Net Financial Debt / (Net Financial Debt + Total Shareholders' Equity).

Pro-Forma Net Financial Debt (Millions of Euros) 2013 9M14 / 20139M14
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6 

Consolidated Financial Statements  
 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Three Months and Nine 

Months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014  

and 30 September 2013 Restated   

 

(Amounts stated in thou sands of euros)  

 
3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13 3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

REPORTED REPORTED RESTATED RESTATED

REVENUES:

Services rendered 240,586 611,733 240,586 611,733 329,274 977,270

Sales 8,678 19,925 8,678 19,925 15,863 40,448

Other operating revenues 2,329 4,694 2,329 4,694 2,681 12,419

6 251,594 636,351 251,594 636,351 347,818 1,030,137

COSTS, LOSSES AND GAINS:

Wages and salaries 7 16,892 41,028 16,892 41,028 21,351 61,126

Direct costs 8 75,188 183,116 75,188 183,116 99,693 296,898

Costs of products sold 9 4,407 6,860 4,407 6,860 14,900 37,030

Marketing and advertising 4,125 13,614 4,125 13,614 11,471 23,485

Support services 10 15,522 42,138 15,522 42,138 21,707 65,824

Supplies and external services 10 31,644 79,291 31,644 79,291 43,522 136,816

Other operational losses / (gains) 338 422 338 422 130 882

Taxes 2,400 4,731 2,400 4,731 6,030 16,219

Provisions and adjustments 11  (198) 7,220  (198) 7,220  (4,427)  (5,100)

Net Losses / (gains) of affiliated companies 12 - -  (681)  (2,335)  (4,024)  (11,633)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 13 59,845 159,445 59,845 159,445 81,539 251,642

Reestructuring costs 15,926 16,133 15,926 16,133 12,445 25,492

Losses/(gains) on sale of assets, net 156  (667) 156  (667)  (1,330)  (1,304)

Other losses/(gains), net 16,193 16,275 16,193 16,275 7,163 9,551

242,438 569,607 241,757 567,271 310,170 906,928

9,156 66,744 9,837 69,080 37,648 123,209

Financial costs 14 8,629 22,263 8,629 22,263 9,255 27,843

Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) 51 93 51 93 89 99

Net losses/(gains) on financial assets 15 805 1,330 805 1,330 11 940

Net Losses / (gains) of affiliated companies  (681)  (2,335) - - - -

Net other financial expenses/(income) 14 4,823 13,586 4,823 13,586 5,529 15,356

13,627 34,936 14,308 37,272 14,884 44,238

INCOME BEFORE TAXES  (4,471) 31,808  (4,471) 31,808 22,764 78,971

Income taxes 16  (3,290) 7,335  (3,290) 7,335 4,005 16,126

NET CONSOLIDATED INCOME  (1,181) 24,474  (1,181) 24,474 18,759 62,845

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Non-controlled interests 211 570 211 570  (3) 407

NOS GROUP SHAREHOLDERS  (1,393) 23,904  (1,393) 23,904 18,762 62,438

EARNINGS PER SHARES

Basic - euros 17  (0.00) 0.07  (0.00) 0.07 0.04 0.12

Diluted - euros 17  (0.00) 0.07  (0.00) 0.07 0.04 0.12

9M 14NOTES 3rd QUARTER 14

INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL RESULTS AND 

TAXES

 
 

As standard practice, only the annual accounts are audited; the quarterly results and the restated 

results are not audited separately.  

 

The Notes to the Financial Statements form an integral part of the consolidated statement of 

compreh ensive income for the nine months ended on 30 September 2014.  

 

Accountant                                               The Board of Directors 
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Three Months and Nine 

Months ended on 30 September 2013 a nd 2014  and 30 September 2013 Restated  

 

(Amounts stated in thousands of euros)  

 
3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13 3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

REPORTED REPORTED RESTATED RESTATED

NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (1,181) 24,474 (1,181) 24,474 18,759 62,845

OTHER INCOME

ITENS THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED 

SUBSEQUENTLY TO THE INCOME STATEMENT:

Accounting for equity method 23 - - 542 350 (239) (247)

Fair value of interest rate swap 31 (725) 1,336 (725) 1,336 1,383 915

Deferred income tax - interest rate swap 31 205 (354) 205 (354) (80) 49

Fair value of exchange rate forward 31 (176) (87) (176) (87) 348 488

Deferred income tax -exchange rate forward 31 38 25 38 25 (124) (163)

Currency translation differences and others 103 84 (439) (266) 22 -

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  (556) 1,003  (556) 1,003 1,310 1,042

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 

PERIOD
 (1,737) 25,477  (1,737) 25,477 20,069 63,887

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

NOS group shareholders (1,949) 24,907 (1,949) 24,907 20,072 63,480

Non-controlling interests 211 570 211 570 (3) 407

9M 14NOTES 3rd QUARTER 14

 

 

As standard practice, only the annual accounts are audited; the quarterly results and the restated 

results are not audited separately.  

 

The Notes to the Financial Statement s form an integral part of the consolidated statement of 

comprehensive income for the nine months ended on 30 September 2014.  

 

Accountant                                               The Board of Directors 
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at 30 September 2013 and 2014 and 31 

December 2013 and 30 September 2013 and 31 December 2013 Restated  

 

(Amounts stated in thousands of euros)  

 

30-09-2013 31-12-2013 30-09-2013 31-12-2013 30-09-2014

REPORTED RESTATED RESTATED

UNAUDITED UNAUDITED UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 20 57,586 74,380 57,586 74,380 40,862

Accounts receivable - trade 21 290,229 276,630 290,229 276,630 311,998

Accounts receivable - other 38,830 32,999 38,830 32,999 30,888

Inventories 33,913 32,579 33,913 32,579 34,727

Taxes receivable 22 7,576 11,830 7,576 11,830 7,477

Non-current assets held-for-sale 678 678 678 678 678

Prepaid expenses 30,618 25,546 30,618 25,546 44,520

Other current assets 129 199 129 199 -

Derivative financial instruments 31 - - - - 356

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 459,560 454,840 459,560 454,840 471,506

NON - CURRENT ASSETS

Accounts receivable - other 5,400 5,173 5,400 5,173 3,699

Tax receivable 22 - 4,226 - 4,226 4,232

23 32,489 31,614 32,489 31,614 30,868

Available-for-sale financial assets 24 19,329 19,329 19,329 19,329 18,423

Intangible assets 25 1,115,286 1,111,107 1,182,898 1,160,599 1,158,265

Tangible assets 26 1,108,653 1,096,823 1,083,147 1,096,823 1,094,066

Investment property 812 801 812 801 765

Deferred income tax assets 16 164,219 165,416 176,250 156,467 138,416

TOTAL NON - CURRENT ASSETS 2,446,187 2,434,489 2,500,324 2,475,032 2,448,735

TOTAL ASSETS 2,905,747 2,889,329 2,959,884 2,929,872 2,920,241

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Borrowings 27 84,988 213,431 84,988 213,431 303,217

Accounts payable-trade 28 245,764 296,823 245,764 296,823 314,490

Accounts payable-other 67,273 70,748 67,273 70,748 62,182

Accrued expenses 183,882 129,901 183,882 129,901 154,295

Deferred income 27,909 25,518 27,909 25,518 28,098

Taxes payable 22 28,141 22,992 28,141 22,992 17,827

Provisions for other liabilities and charges 29 2,850 - 2,850 - -

Derivative financial instruments 31 132 2,814 132 2,814 127

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 640,939 762,227 640,939 762,227 880,236

NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Borrowings 27 1,064,350 928,239 1,064,350 928,239 811,867

Accounts payable-other - - - - 44

Accrued expenses 16,887 28,705 14,960 28,705 27,439

Deferred income 2,206 2,060 2,206 2,060 6,159

Provisions for other liabilities and charges 29 94,820 92,429 138,820 132,972 128,152

Deferred income tax liabilities 16 8,623 15,456 19,620 15,456 16,560

Derivative financial instruments 31 4,715 - 4,715 - 1,640

TOTAL NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,191,602 1,066,889 1,244,672 1,107,432 991,861

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,832,541 1,829,116 1,885,611 1,869,659 1,872,097

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Share capital 30.1 5,152 5,152 5,152 5,152 5,152

Capital issued premium 30.2 854,219 854,219 854,219 854,219 854,219

Own shares 30.3  (896)  (2,003)  (896)  (2,003)  (9,416)

Legal reserve 30.4 3,556 3,556 3,556 3,556 3,556

Other reserves and accumulated earnings 30.4 177,536 178,864 178,603 178,864 122,339

Net income 23,904 10,810 23,904 10,810 62,438

EQUITY BEFORE NON - CONTROLLING

INTERESTS
1,063,470 1,050,598 1,064,538 1,050,598 1,038,288

Non-controlling interests 9,736 9,615 9,736 9,615 9,856

TOTAL EQUITY 1,073,207 1,060,213 1,074,274 1,060,213 1,048,144

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER´S EQUITY 2,905,747 2,889,329 2,959,884 2,929,872 2,920,241

Investments in jointly controlled companies and 

associated companies

UNAUDITED
NOTES

REPORTED

 
The Notes to the Financial Statements form an integral part of the consolidated statement of financial 

positio n as at 30 September 2014.  

 

Accountant                                               The Board of Directors
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for the Nine Months ended on 30 September 2013 Restated and 30 September 2014  

 

(Amounts s tated in thousands of euros)  
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3,091 -  (910)  (4) 3,556 168,086 36,018 9,396 219,234
Effect of change in accounting policies 2 - - - - -  (3,301) 3,476 - 175

3,091 -  (910)  (4) 3,556 164,785 39,494 9,396 219,409
Result appropriation

Transfered to reserves - - - - - 39,494  (39,494) - -
Dividends paid 18 - - - - -  (37,044) -  (229)  (37,273)

Capital increase by incorporation of Optimus SGPS in ZON 30.2 2,061 854,344 - - - - - - 856,404
Costs related to the capital increase 30.2 -  (125) - - - - - -  (125)
Aquisition of own shares 30.3 - -  (1,486)  (4) - - - -  (1,490)
Distribuition of own shares 30.3 - - 1,502 6 -  (1,508) - - -
Share Plan - Changes in the consolidation perimeter 5 - - - - - 9,613 - - 9,613
Share Plan 35 - - - - - 1,223 - - 1,223
Comprehensive income for the period - - - - - 1,003 23,904 570 25,477
Others - - - - - 1,037 - - 1,037

5,152 854,219  (895)  (2) 3,556 178,603 23,904 9,736 1,074,274

5,152 854,219  (1,999)  (4) 3,556 174,639 15,035 9,615 1,060,213
Result appropriation

Transfered to reserves - - - - - 15,035  (15,035) - -
Dividends paid 18 - - - - -  (61,818) -  (194)  (62,012)

Aquisition of own shares 30.3 - -  (25,970)  (51) - - - -  (26,021)

Loan of own shares 30.3 - -  (4,859)  (10) - 4,869 - - -
Reimbursement and payment of the loan of own shares 30.3 - - 2,942 6 -  (4,838) - -  (1,890)
Distribuition of own shares - share plan 30.3 - - 10,933 21 -  (10,954) - - -

Distribuition of own shares - other remunerations 30.3 - - 9,557 18 -  (223) - - 9,352
Share Plan 35 - - - - - 5,139 - 28 5,167

Comprehensive income for the period - - - - - 1,042 62,438 407 63,887
Others - - - - -  (552) - -  (552)

5,152 854,219  (9,396)  (20) 3,556 122,339 62,438 9,856 1,048,144

BALANCE AS AT 1 JANUARY 2013 (REPORTED)

BALANCE AS AT 1 JANUARY 2013 (RESTATED)

BALANCE AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2013 (RESTATED)

BALANCE AS AT 1 JANUARY 2014

BALANCE AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2014  
 

As standard practice, only the annual accounts are audited; the quarterly results and the restated 

results are not audited separately.  

 

The Notes to the Financial Statements form an integral part of the consolidated stateme nt of changes 

in shareholders' equity for the nine months ended on 30 September 2014.  

 

Accountant                                               The Board of Directors 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Nine Months ended on 30 September 

2013 and 2014 and 30 September 2013 Restated  
 

(Amounts stated in thousands of euros)  
 

9M 13 9M 13

REPORTED RESTATED

UNAUDITED UNAUDITED UNAUDITED

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Collections from clients 766,709 766,709 1,205,594

Payments to suppliers  (453,795)  (453,795)  (671,007)

Payments to employees  (47,889)  (47,889)  (75,797)

Payments / receipts relating to income taxes  (8,560)  (8,560) 8,934

Other cash receipts / payments related with operating activities  (46,569)  (46,569)  (62,926)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1) 209,896 209,896 404,798

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH RECEIPTS RESULTING FROM

Financial investments 35 35 100

Tangible fixed assets 2,222 2,222 524

Intangible assets - - 2

Loans granted 27,316 27,316 1,678

Interest and related income 24,343 24,343 5,688

Others 2,903 2,903 1

56,821 56,821 7,993

PAYMENTS RESULTING FROM

Financial investments 4 - -  (14,000)

Tangible fixed assets  (68,001)  (68,001)  (167,684)

Intangible assets  (21,240)  (21,240)  (101,413)

Loans granted  (21)  (21) -

 (89,262)  (89,262)  (283,097)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2)  (32,442)  (32,442)  (275,104)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH RECEIPTS RESULTING FROM

Loans obtained 1,157,525 1,157,525 1,951,934

Subsidies 47 47 -

1,157,572 1,157,572 1,951,934

PAYMENTS RESULTING FROM

Loans obtained  (1,481,050)  (1,481,050)  (1,962,600)

Lease rentals (principal)  (16,824)  (16,824)  (18,754)

Interest and related expenses  (31,258)  (31,258)  (41,659)

Dividends 18  (37,273)  (37,273)  (62,013)

Acquisition of own shares 30.3  (1,490)  (1,490)  (30,890)

Other financial activities  (692)  (692) -

 (1,568,587)  (1,568,587)  (2,115,916)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3)  (411,015)  (411,015)  (163,982)

Change in cash and cash equivalents (4)=(1)+(2)+(3)  (233,561)  (233,561)  (34,288)

Effect of exchange differences  (19)  (19) 26

Changes in the consolidated perimeter 4 17,987 17,987 646

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 273,179 273,179 70,142

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 57,586 57,586 36,526

Cash and cash equivalents 20 57,586 57,586 40,862

Bank overdrafts 27 - -  (4,336)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 57,586 57,586 36,526

9M 14
NOTES

 
 

The Notes to the Financial Statements form an integral part of the consolidated statement of cash flows for the 

nine months ended on 30 September 2014.  

 

Accountant                                               The Board of Directors
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 September 2014  
(Amounts stated in thousands of euros, unless otherwise stated)  

 

 

1. Introductory Note  

 

NOS, SGPS, S.A. ("NOS" or "Company"), for

and until 27 august 2013 named ZON Multimédia  Serviços de Telecomunicações e Multimédia, SGPS, 

was establi shed by Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A. ("Portugal Telecom") on July 15, 1999 for the purpose 

of implementing its multimedia business strategy.  

 

During the 2007 financial year, Portugal Telecom proceeded with the spin -off of ZON through the 

attribution of its  participation in the company to their shareholders, which become fully independent 

from Portugal Telecom.  

 

During the 2013 financial year, ZON and Optimus, SGPS, S.A. ("Optimus SGPS") have merged through 

the incorporation of Optimus SGPS into ZON. Thereaf ter, the Company adopted the designation of 

ZON OPTIMUS, SGPS, S.A.. 

 

 

S.A.  

 

name to NOS, SGPS, S.A., which was registered on 27 June 2014. 

 

Similarly, several Group companies changed their designation. ZON Conteúdos  Atividade de 

Televisão e de Produção de Conteúdos, S.A., ZON Lusomundo Audiovisuais, S.A., ZON Lusomundo 

TV, S.A., ZON Lusomundo Cinemas, S.A., ZON TV Cabo Açorean a, S.A. and ZON TV Cabo Madeirense, 

 

 

company dedicated to datacenter management and consult ing services in IT.  

 

The businesses operated by NOS and its associated companies, form the "NOS Group" or "Group", 

which includes cable and satellite television services, voice and Internet access services, video 

production and sale, advertising on Pay TV channels, cinema exhibition and distribution, and the 

production of channels for Pay TV.  
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September 2014 is shown in Note 30.  

 

Cable and satellite television i n Portugal is mainly provided by NOS Comunicações, S.A, name adopted 

after the merger in 16 May 2014 between ZON TV Cabo Portugal, S.A. in Optimus  Comunicações, 

S.A., and its subsidiaries, NOS Açores and NOS Madeira. These companies carry out: a) cable a nd 

satellite television distribution; b) the operation of the latest generation mobile communication 

network, GSM/UMTS/LTE; c) the operation of electronic communications services, including data and 

multimedia communication services in general; d) IP voice  services ("VOIP" - Voice over IP); e) Mobile 

indirectly related to the above mentioned activities and services. The business of NOS SA, NOS Açores 

and NOS Madeira is regulated by Law no . 5/2004 (Electronic Communications Law), which establishes 

the legal regime governing electronic communications networks and services.  

 

NOSPUB and NOS Lusomundo TV operate in the television and content production busines s, and 

currently produce films and series channels, which are distributed, among other operators, by NOS SA 

and its subsidiaries. NOSPUB also manages the advertising space on Pay TV channels and in the 

cinemas of NOS Cinemas.  

 

NOS Audiovisuais and NOS Cine mas, together with their associated companies, operate in the 

audiovisual sector, which includes video production and sale, cinema exhibition and distribution, and 

the acquisition/negotiation of Pay TV and VOD (video -on-demand) rights.  

 

On 27 August 2013, the Company completed a merger operation by incorporation of Optimus SGPS 

into ZON. Optimus SGPS was a parent company of a group of companies which includes Optimus - 

Comunicações S.A. which operates the latest generation mobile communication network, 

GSM/UMTS/LTE, with extensive coverage in the national territory , as well as latest next generation 

wireline network, which includes a transmission component, a backbone component and local access 

fiber components. As a result of the merger, all Optimus SGPS s ubsidiaries were included in the 

consolidation scope: Be Artis  

communications networks and th eir equipment and infrastructure, management of technologic assets 

and rendering of related services; Be Towering  

d other 

sites for the installation of telecommunications equipment; Optimus - Communications , SA 

("Optimus") , which operates in the implementation, operation, exploitation and offer of networks and 

rendering services of electronic communications and rela ted resources; offer and commercialization of 

products and equipments of electronic communications; Per -mar  Sociedade de Construções, S.A. 

-

establishments,  and Sontária  

undertaking of urbanization and building construction, planning, urban management, studies, 

construction and property management, purchase and sale of properties and res ale of properties 

purchased for that purpose.  
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These Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements follow the order in which the items are shown 

in the consolidated financial statements.  

 

The consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended on 3 0 September 2014 were 

approved by the Board of Directors and their issue authorised on 5 November 2014.  

 

The Board of Directors believes that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the 

ws.  

 

 

2. Accounting Policies  

 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are described 

below. These policies were consistently applied to all the financial years presented, unless otherwise 

indicated.  

 

2.1 Principles of Presentation  

 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros as this is the main currency of the 

Group's operations. The financial statements of subsidiaries located abroad were converted into euros 

in accordance with the accounting polici es described in Note 2.20.  

 

The consolidated financial statements of NOS were prepared in accordance with the International 

January 2014. 

 

These consolidated finantial statements are presented in accordance with IAS 34  Interim Financial 

by the IFRS and so they should be analysed together with the consolidated financial statements of the 

year ended at 31 Decemb er 2013. 

 

The consolidated financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis from the ledgers and 

accounting records of the companies included in the consolidation (Annex A), using the historical cost 

convention, adjusted where applicable for the  valuation of financial assets and liabilities (including 

derivatives) at their fair value.  

 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS, the Board used estimates, 

assumptions and critical judgements with impact on the value of assets and liabilities and the 

recognition of income and costs in each reporting period. Although these estimates were based on the 

best information available at the date of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, current 
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and future result s may differ from these estimates. The areas involving a higher element of judgment 

and estimates are described in Note 3.  

 

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures  

 

The standards and interpretations that became effective as of 1 January 2014 are as follows:  

 

¶ 

and consolidation included in IAS 27 and SIC 12, amending the definition of control and the criteria 

for determining control. The basic principle tha t the consolidated financial statements present the 

parent company and subsidiaries as a single entity remains unchanged. This standard did not have 

standard  in t he year ended at 31 December 2013.  

 

¶ 

the joint arrangements, rather than its legal form. Joint arrangements may be either joint 

operations (rights over assets a nd obligations) or joint ventures (rights to the net assets of the 

arrangement as measured by the equity method). Proportionate consolidation is no longer 

allowed when assessing jointly controlled Entities. The Group has early adopted this standard in 

the year ended at 31 December 2013, resulting in changing the accounting of jointly controlled 

entities, previously proportionately consolidated, being recorded according to the equity method. 

Jointly controlled entities are disclosed in the attached maps.  

 

¶ IFRS 12 (new)  

disclosure requirements for all types of interests in other entities, including joint ventures, 

associates and special purpose entities, in order to assess the n ature, risk and financial impacts 

interests in other entities (Map attached).  

 

¶ he issue of IFRS 

10 and contains the accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint 

ventures and associates where an entity prepares separate financial statements. This standard did 

l statements.  

 

¶ 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016). The amendments address an acknowledged 

inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28, in dealing with the sale or 

contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. This amendment has 

 

 

¶ S 28 was revised after the 

issue of IFRS 11 and prescribes the accounting treatment of investments in associates and joint 

ventures, establishing the requirements for applying the equity method. Early adoption of this 
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standard resulted in changing the acco unting of jointly controlled entities, previously 

proportionately consolidated, being recorded according to the equity method. Jointly controlled 

entities are disclosed in the attached maps.  

 

¶ Amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IFRS 27  

amendment includes the definition of an Entity managing financial contributions and introduces 

the regime of exception to the obligation for Entities managing financial partnerships that qualify 

to provide funding, once all inve stments are measured against fair value. Specific disclosures are 

required for IFRS 12. This standard does not apply to the Group.  

 

¶  

amendment is part of the IAS

-

systems (clearing houses) may be considered equivalent to net settlement. This amen dment does 

 

 

¶ -

amendment eliminates the disclosure requirements of the recoverable amount of a cash -

generating unit like goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives allocated to periods 

where it was not recorded any impairment loss or reversal of impairment. Introduces additional 

disclosure requirements for assets for which it was recorded an i mpairment loss or reversal of 

impairment and the recoverable amount of these has been determined based on fair value less 

statements.  

 

¶ al Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Novation of 

of hedge accounting when a derivative designated as a hedging instrument is legally imposed, 

subject to th e contract counterparty novation to a clearing house. This amendment does not have 

 

 

¶ 

amendment es tablishes the conditions regarding the timing of recognition of a liability related to 

pay a levy by an entity as a result of a particular event (eg, participation in a particular market), 

without having goods and specified services associated.  

 

The follow ing standards, interpretations, amendments and revisions, with mandatory application in 

future financial years, have not yet been endorsed by the European Union, at the date of approval of 

these financial statements:  

 

¶  

designated). The initial phase of IFRS 9 forecasts two types of measurement: amortised cost and 

fair value. All equity instruments are measured at fair value. A financial instrument is measured at 
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amor tised  cost only if the company has it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows 

represent principal and interest. Otherwise, financial instruments are measured at fair value 

through profit and loss.  

 

¶ IFRS 7 and 9 (Amendment), "Financial Instrum ents" (effective date to be designated). The 

amendment to IFRS 9 is part of the draft revision of IAS 39 and establishes the requirements for 

the application of hedge accounting. IFRS 7 was also revised as a result of this amendment.  

 

¶ IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (a

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 1 0 

and those in IAS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its 

associate or joint venture.  

 

¶ 

annual periods beginning on  or after 1 January 2016).  This amendment adds new guidance on 

how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business. 

 

 

¶ 

companies in regulated markets, allowing the companies that currently record assets and 

liabilities in result of the regulation form the markets where they operate, in accordance with the 

adopted accounting principles, do not have the need to eliminate those assets and liabilities in the 

first time adoption of the IFRS. This standard will  

financial statements.  

 

¶ 

on or after 1 January 2017). This standard establishes a single, comprehensive framework for 

revenue recognition. The framework will  be applied consistently across transactions, industries 

companies globally. IFRS 15 replaces the following standards and interpretations: IAS 18 Revenue, 

IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for 

the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC -31 Revenue 

 Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.  

 

¶ IAS 16 and 38 

has clarified that the use of revenue -based methods to calculate the depreciation of an  asset is 

not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset 

generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the 

asset.  
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¶ 

on or after 1 January 2016). IAS 41 required all biological assets related to agricultural activity to be 

measured at fair value less costs to sell. This amendment decided that bearer plants should be 

accounted f or in the same way as property, plant and equipment in IAS 16, because their 

operation is similar to that of manufacturing. This standard is not applicable to the Group.  

 

¶  after 1 

July 2014). This amendment clarifies the circumstances in which employee contribution plans for 

post -employment benefits are a reduction in the cost of short -term benefits. This standard is not 

applicable to the Group.  

 

¶ Improvements to Financial R eporting Standards (2010 -2012 cycle and 2011-2013 effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 and 2012 -2014 cycle effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2016). These improvements involve the review of several 

standa rds. 

 

The Group is calculating the impact of this alteration and will apply this standard as soon as it becomes 

effective.  

 

Voluntary Changes in Accounting Policies  

 

During the third quarter of the year ended at 31 December 2013, the Group, in addition to the  

early adoption of IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, and the amendments of IAS 27 and IAS 28, in line with in the 

sector and, particularly, considering the necessary standardization of policies with Optimus SGPS 

subsidiaries, changed its accounting criteria f

these were recorded as an expense in the year they occurred.  

 

From 1 January 

clauses in the event of early term ination, are capitalised as "Intangible assets" and amortised over the 

period of their contracts, since it is possible to apply a reliable cost allocation to the respective 

contracts, as well as the revenue generated by each contract, thus fulfilling the c riteria for 

capitalisation required by IAS 38 - Intangible Assets . When a contract is terminated, the net value of 

intangible assets associated with that contract is immediately recognised as an expense in the 

consolidated statement of comprehensive incom e. This accounting policy allows a more true, fair and 

reliable presentation of the financial position and the financial performance of the Group, as it allows 

. 

Additionally, at the date of each statement of financial position and whenever an event or change of 

circumstances indicates that the recorded amount of an asset may not be recoverable, impairment 

tests are carried out to ensure that the current value of  the estimated revenues associated with each 

contract is greater than the amount that is capitalised.  

 

Also, during the third quarter of the year ended at 31 December 2013, the Group changed the 

accounting policy regarding the future rights of use of movie s and series. To date, these were 
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recorded as an expense in the year they occurred. The costs are capitalised as "Intangible assets" once 

it is possible to measure, reliably, the costs incurred with each contract as well as the revenue 

generated, meeting t he criteria for capitalisation as required by IAS 38 - Intangible assets. Additionally,  

the model of amortisation and impairment of those rights has been adjusted, reflecting the business 

and how the rights are used more reliably. Additionally, at the dat e of each statement of financial 

position and whenever an event or change of circumstances indicates that the recorded amount of an 

asset may not be recoverable, impairment tests are carried out to ensure that the current value of the 

estimated revenues as sociated with each right is greater than the amount that is capitalised.  

 

As provided under IAS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors , these 

policy changes were applied retrospectively. Therefore changes were made to the cons olidated 

statement of financial position of 1 January.  

 

The effects of these changes in the consolidated statement of financial position are presented in the 

table below.  

 

Impact of Changes in Accounting Policies  

at 1 January 2013 

 

REPORTED
JOINT 

ARRANGEMENTS

SUBSCRIBER 

ACQUISITION 

COSTS

RIGHTS ON 

MOVIES AND 

SERIES

RESTATED

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 308,251  (35,072) - - 273,179

Inventories 44,317  (10,154) -  (2,582) 31,581

Accounts receivable and other assets 258,815  (7,807) -  (34,315) 216,693

Investments in participated companies 222 34,857 - - 35,079

Intangible assets 319,155  (32,564) 16,249 20,781 323,621

Tangible assets 632,047  (13,809) - - 618,238

Deferred income tax assets 48,146  (706) - 4,753 52,193

TOTAL ASSETS 1,610,953  (65,256) 16,249  (11,363) 1,550,584

LIABILITIES

Borrowings 1,084,473  (77,151) - - 1,007,322

Accounts payable and other liabilities 295,639  (9,645) - - 285,994

Provisions 8,831 21,540 - - 30,371

Deferred income tax liabilities 2,776 - 4,712 - 7,488

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,391,719  (65,256) 4,712 - 1,331,175

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Equity before non-controlled interests 209,838 - 11,537  (11,363) 210,013

Non-controlled interests 9,396 - - - 9,396

TOTAL EQUITY 219,234 - 11,537  (11,363) 219,409

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER´S EQUITY 1,610,953  (65,256) 16,249  (11,363) 1,550,584

1 JANUARY 2013

 
 

During 2014, the Grou

reflecting the operational nature of investments accounted for using the equity method. The prior 

 

 

As provided under IAS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors , these 

policy changes were applied retrospectively. Therefore changes were made to the consolidated 

statements of comprehensive income for the nine months ended 30 September 2013.  
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The effects of early adoption of new standards and amendments, and changes in accounting policies 

in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income are presented in the ta ble below.  

 

Impact of Changes in Accounting Policies  

during the Nine Months ended 30 September 2013  

 
30 SEPTEMBER 2013

REPORTED

NET LOSSES / 

(GAINS) OF 

AFFILIATED 

COMPANIES

RESTATED

REVENUES:

Sales and services rendered 631,658 - 631,658

Other operating revenues 4,694 - 4,694

636,351 - 636,351

COSTS, LOSSES AND GAINS:

Wages and salaries 41,028 - 41,028

Direct costs 183,116 - 183,116

Supplies and external services 79,291 - 79,291

Provisions and adjustments 7,220 - 7,220

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 159,445 - 159,445

Net Losses / (gains) of affiliated companies -  (2,335)  (2,335)

Other loss / (gains), net 99,507 - 99,506

569,607  (2,335) 567,271

66,744 2,335 69,080

Net Losses / (gains) of affiliated companies  (2,335) 2,335 -

Net other financial expenses / (income) 37,272 - 37,272

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 31,808 - 31,808

Income taxes 7,335 - 7,335

NET CONSOLIDATED INCOME 24,474 - 24,474

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Non-controlled interests 570 - 570

23,904 - 23,904

INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL RESULTS AND 

TAXES

NOS GROUP SHAREHOLDERS  
 

These changes did not have any impact in the consolidated statements of financial position, 

consolidated statement of cash flows and 

comprehensive income.  

 

As mentioned in the 2013 financial statements, following the preliminary fair value allocation of  the 

acquired assets and assumed liabilities related to the merger between ZON and Optimus SGPS, the 

price allocation of this business combination was subject to alterations during one year since the 

acquisition date, as established by IFRS 3  Business Combinations.  

 

During the one year period, ended on 26 August 2014, the Company changed the fair value allocation 

of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities. This change was applied retrospectively, as allowed by 

IFRS 3 - Business Combinations.  

 

The effe cts resulting of changes in the fair value of the acquired assets and the liabilities assumed in 

the consolidated statement of financial position are presented in the tables below.  
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Impact of Changes in Fair Value  

at 30 September 2013  

 

REPORTED
CHANGES IN THE 

FAIR VALUE
RESTATED

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 57,586 - 57,586

Inventories 33,913 - 33,913

Accounts receivable and other assets 393,601 - 393,601

Investments in participated companies 32,489 - 32,489

Intangible assets 1,115,286 67,612 1,182,898

Tangible assets 1,108,653  (25,506) 1,083,147

Deferred income tax assets 164,219 12,031 176,250

TOTAL ASSETS 2,905,747 54,137 2,959,884

LIABILITIES

Borrowings 1,149,338 - 1,149,338

Accounts payable and other liabilities 576,910  (1,927) 574,983

Provisions 97,670 44,000 141,670

Deferred income tax liabilities 8,623 10,997 19,620

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,832,541 53,070 1,885,611

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Equity before non-controlled interests 1,063,470 1,067 1,064,538

Non-controlled interests 9,736 - 9,736

TOTAL EQUITY 1,073,207 1,067 1,074,274

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER´S EQUITY 2,905,747 54,137 2,959,884

30 SEPTEMBER 2013

 
 

Impact of Changes  in Fair Value 

at 31 December 2013  

 

REPORTED
CHANGES IN THE 

FAIR VALUE
RESTATED

ASSETS

Intangible assets 1,111,107 49,492 1,160,599

Deferred income tax assets 165,416 (8,949) 156,467

Other assets 1,612,806 - 1,612,806

TOTAL ASSETS 2,889,329 40,543 2,929,872

LIABILITIES

Provisions 92,429 40,543 132,972

Other liabilities 1,736,687 - 1,736,687

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,829,116 40,543 1,869,659

TOTAL EQUITY 1,060,213 - 1,060,213

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER´S EQUITY 2,889,329 40,543 2,929,872

31 DECEMBER 2013

 
 

These changes did not have any impact in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, 
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2.2 Bases of Consolidati on 

 

Controlled Companies  

 

Controlled companies were consolidated by the full consolidation method. Control is deemed to exist 

when the Group is exposed or has rights, as a result of their involvement, to a variable return of the 

entity's activities, and ha s capacity to affect this return through the power over the entity. Namely, 

when the Company directly or indirectly holds a majority of the voting rights at a General Meeting of 

Shareholders or has the power to determine the financial and operating policie s. In situations where 

the Company has, in substance, control of other entities created for a specific purpose, although it 

does not directly hold equity in them, such entities are consolidated by the full consolidation method. 

The entities in these situat ions are listed in Annex A).  

 

The interest of third parties in the equity and net profit of such companies is presented separately in 

the consolidated statement of financial position and in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 

income, respectively, -  

 

The identifiable acquired assets and the liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business 

combination are measured initially at fair value at the acquisition date, irrespective of the existence of 

non -

identifiable acquired assets and liabilities is stated in Goodwill. Where the acquisition cost is less than 

the fair value of the identified net assets, the d ifference is recorded as a gain in the statement of 

comprehensive income in the period in which the acquisition occurs.  

 

The interests of minority shareholders are initially recognised as their proportion of the fair value of 

the identifiable assets and li abilities.  

 

On the acquisition of additional equity shares in companies already controlled by the Group, the 

difference between the share of capital acquired and the corresponding acquisition value is recognised 

directly in equity.  

 

Where an increase in p osition in the capital of an associated company results in the acquisition of 

control, with the latter being included in the consolidated financial statements by the full consolidation 

method, the share of the fair values assigned to the assets and liabili ties, corresponding to the 

percentages previously held, is stated in the income statement.  

 

The directly attributable transaction costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.  

 

The results of companies acquired or sold during the year are included in  the income statements as 

from the date of acquisition or until the date of their disposal, respectively.  
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Intercompany transactions, balances, unrealised gains on transactions and dividends distributed 

between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised lo sses are also eliminated unless the transaction 

shows evidence of impairment of the transferred asset.  

 

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of controlled companies in order 

to align their accounting policies with those of the Group.  

 

Jointly Controlled Companies  

 

The classification of investments as jointly controlled companies is determined based on the existence 

of shareholder agreements which show and regulate the joint control. Financial investments of jointly 

controlled co mpanies (Annex C)) are stated by the equity method. Under this method, financial 

investments are adjusted periodically by an amount corresponding to the share in the net profits of 

 

statement of comprehensive income. Direct changes in the post -acquisition equity of associated 

companies are recognised as the value of the shareholding as a contra entry in reserves, in equity.  

 

Additionally, financial inves tments may also be adjusted for recognition of impairment losses.  

 

Any excess of acquisition cost over the fair value of identifiable net assets and liabilities (goodwill) is 

recorded as part of the financial investment of jointly controlled companies and subject to impairment 

testing when there are indicators of loss of value. Where the acquisition cost is less than the fair value 

of the identified net assets, the difference is recorded as a gain in the statement of comprehensive 

income in the period in wh ich the acquisition occurs.  

 

Losses in jointly controlled companies which exceed the investment made in them are not recognised, 

except where the Group has entered into undertakings with that company.  

 

Dividends received from these companies are recorded a s a reduction in the value of the financial 

investments.  

 

Associated Companies  

 

An associated company is a company in which the Group exercises significant influence through 

participation in decisions about its financial and operating policies, but in whic h does not have control 

or joint control.  

 

Any excess of the acquisition cost of a financial investment over the fair value of the identifiable net 

assets is recorded as goodwill and is added to the value of the financial investment and its recovery is 

reviewed annually or whenever there are indications of possible loss of value. Where the acquisition 

cost is less than the fair value of the identified net assets, the difference is recorded as a gain in the 

statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the acquisition occurs.  
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Financial investments in the majority of associated companies (Annex B)) are stated by the equity 

method. Under this method, financial investments are adjusted periodically by an amount 

corresponding to the share in the net p

post -acquisition equity of associated companies are recognised as the value of the sharehold ing as a 

contra entry in reserves, in equity. Additionally, financial investments may also be adjusted for 

recognition of impairment losses.  

 

Losses in associated companies which exceed the investment made in them are not recognised, 

except where the Grou p has entered into undertakings with that associated company.  

 

Dividends received from these companies are recorded as a reduction in the value of the financial 

investments.  

 

Conversion to Euros of Financial Statements Expressed in Foreign Currencies  

 

See accounting policy 2.20.  

 

Balances and Transactions between Group Companies  

 

Balances and transactions and unrealised gains between Group companies, and between them and the 

parent company, are eliminated in the consolidation. The part of unrealised gains a rising from 

transactions with associated companies or jointly controlled companies attributable to the Group are 

eliminated in the consolidation. Unrealised losses are similarly eliminated except where they show 

evidence of impairment of the transferred as set.  

 

2.3 Segment Reporting  

 

As stipulated in IFRS 8, the Group presents operating segments based on internally produced 

management information.  

 

Operating segments are reported consistently with the internal management information model 

provided to the chief  operating decision maker of the Group, who is responsible for allocating 

resources to the segment and for assessing its performance, and for taking strategic decisions.  

 

2.4  Classification of the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive 

Income  

 

Realisable assets and liabilities due in less than one year from the date of the statement of financial 

position are classified as current in assets and liabilities, respectively.  
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In accordance with IAS 1, "Restructuring costs", "Losses / (gains) on disposal of assets " and "Other 

losses / (gains) " reflect unusual expenses that should be disclosed separately from the usual lines 

items, to avoid distortion of the financial information from regular operations.  

 

2.5 Tangible Assets  

 

Tangible assets are s tated at acquisition cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 

where applicable. Acquisition cost includes, in addition to the purchase price of the asset: (i) costs 

directly attributable to the purchase; and (ii) the estimated costs of de commissioning and removal of 

the assets and restoration of the site, which in Group applies to the cinema operation business , 

telecommunication towers and offices (Notes 2.14 and 29).  

 

Estimated losses resulting from the replacement of equipment before th e end of its useful life due to 

technological obsolescence are recognised by a deduction from the corresponding asset as a contra 

entry in profit and loss. The costs of current maintenance and repairs are recognised as a cost when 

they are incurred. Signif icant costs incurred on renovations or improvements to the asset are 

capitalised and depreciated over the corresponding estimated payback period when it is probable that 

there will be future economic benefits associated with the asset and when these can be  measured 

reliably.  

 

Non -Current Assets held for Sale  

 

Non -current assets (or discontinued operations), are classified as held for sale if their value is realisable 

through a sale transaction rather than through their continued use. This situation is deeme d to arise 

only where: (i) the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present 

condition; (ii) the Group has given an undertaking to sell; and (iii) it is expected that the sale will be 

realised within 12 months. In thi s case, non-current assets are valued at the lesser of their book value 

or their fair value less the sale costs. From the time that certain tangible assets become deemed as 

non-current assets 

held for sale. Gains and losses on disposals of tangible assets, corresponding to the difference 

 

 

Depreciation  

 

Tangible assets are depreciated from the time they are completed or ready to be used. These assets, 

less their residual value, are depreciated by the straight -line method, in twelfths, from the month in 

which they become available for use, according to the useful li fe of the assets defined as their 

estimated utility.  
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The depreciation rates used correspond to the following estimated useful lives:  

 

Depreciation Rates  

Estimated Useful Lives  

 

2.6 Intangible Assets  

 

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, less ac cumulated amortisation and impairment losses, 

where applicable. Intangible assets are recognised only where they generate future economic benefits 

for the Group and where they can be measured reliably.  

 

Intangible assets consist mainly of goodwill, satelli te and distribution network capacity utilisation 

rights, customer portfolios, costs incurred in raising customers loyalty contracts,  telecom and 

software licenses, content utilisation rights and other contractual rights.  

 

Goodwill  

 

Goodwill represents the  excess of acquisition cost over the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and 

contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, jointly controlled company or associated company at the 

acquisition date, in accordance with IFRS 3.  

 

Goodwill is recorded as an asse

(Note 23) in the case of jointly controlled company or an associated company. Goodwill is not  

amortised and is subject to impairment tests at least once a year, on a specified date, and whenever 

position which may result in a possible loss of value. An y impairment loss is recorded immediately in 

subsequent reversal.  

 

For the purposes of impairment tests, goodwill is attributed to the cash -generating units to w hich it is 

related (Note 25), which may correspond to the business segments in which the Group operates, or a 

lower level.  

 

2013 2014

(YEARS) (YEARS)

Buildings and other constructions 2 - 50 2 - 50

Technical equipment:

Network installations and equipment 7 - 40 7 - 40

Terminal equipment 3 - 8 3 - 8

Other telecommunication equipment 3 - 10 3 - 10

Other technical equipment 1 - 16 1 - 16

Transportation equipment 3 - 4 3 - 4

Administrative equipment 3 - 10 3 - 10

Other tangible assets 4 - 8 4 - 8
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Internally Generated Intangible Assets  

 

Internally generated intangible assets, including expenditure on research, are expensed when  they are 

incurred. Research and development costs are only recognised as assets where the technical capability 

to complete the intangible asset is demonstrated and where it is available for use or sale.  

 

Industrial Property and other Rights  

 

Assets classi fied under this item relate to the rights and licenses acquired under contract by the Group 

to third parties and used in realising the Group's activities, and include:  

 

¶ Satellite capacity utilisation rights;  

¶ Distribution network utilisation rights;  

¶ Telecom  licenses;  

¶ Software licenses;  

¶ Customer portfolios;  

¶ Costs incurred in raising customers loyalty contracts;  

¶ Content utilisation rights;  

¶ Other contractual rights.  

 

Amortisation  

 

These assets are amortised by the straight -line method, in twelfths, from the beg inning of the month 

in which they become available for use. The amortisation rates used correspond to the following 

estimated useful lives:  

 

Depreciation Rates  

Estimated Useful Lives  

 

2.7 Impairment of Non -Current Assets, Excluding Goodwill  

 

Group companies p eriodically carry out an impairment assessment of non -current assets. This 

impairment assessment is also carried out whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 

the amount at which the asset is recorded may not be recoverable. Where such indi cations exist, the 

Group calculates the recoverable value of the asset in order to determine the existence and extent of 

the impairment loss.  

2013 2014

(YEARS) (YEARS)

Rights of using capacities Period of the contract Period of the contract

Telecom Licenses 30 30

Software Licenses 1 - 8 1 - 8

Customer portfolios 5 - 6 5 - 6

Costs incurred in raising customers loyalty contracts Loyalty contract period Loyalty contract period

Content utilisation rights Period of the contract Period of the contract

Other intangible assets 1 - 8 1 - 8
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The recoverable value is estimated for each asset individually or, if that is not possible, assets are 

grouped at the lowest levels for which there are identifiable cash flows to the cash -generating unit to 

-generating unit, except for the 

assets allocated to the cinema exhibition business which are grou ped into regional cash -generating 

units. The recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the net sale price and the current use 

value. The net sale price is the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in a 

transaction between indepen dent and knowledgeable entities, less the costs directly attributable to 

the sale. The current use value is the current value of the estimated future cash flows resulting from 

continued use of the asset or of the cash -generating unit. Where the amount at w hich the asset is 

recorded exceeds its recoverable value, it is recognised as an impairment loss.  

 

The reversal of impairment losses recognised in previous years is recorded when there are indications 

that these losses no longer exist or have decreased. Th e reversal of impairment losses is recognised in 

the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which it occurs. However, an impairment loss 

can only be reversed up to the amount that would be recognised (net of amortisation or depreciation) 

if no im pairment loss had been recorded in previous years.  

 

2.8 Financial Assets  

 

Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position of the Group on the trade or 

contract date, which is the date on which the Group undertakes to purchase or sell the  asset. Initially, 

financial assets are recognised at their fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for 

assets at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are recognised immediately in profit 

or loss. These assets a

flows expire; (ii) the Group has substantially transferred all the risks and benefits associated with their 

ownership; or (iii) although it retains part but not substantially al l of the risks and benefits associated 

with their ownership, the Group has transferred control of the assets.  

 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and shown as a net value when, and only when, the Group has 

the right to offset the recognised amount s and intends to settle for the net value.  

 

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial investments at fair value 

through profit or loss, financial assets available for sale, investments held to maturity and borrowing s 

 

 

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss  

 

This category includes non -derivative financial assets acquired with the intention of selling  them in the 

short term. This category also includes derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting purposes. 

Gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of assets measured at fair value through profit 

or loss are recognised in results 

 

 



 

 

9M14 Consolidated Management Report   49/ 126 

Financial Assets Available for Sale  

 

Financial assets available for sale are non -derivative financial assets which: (i) are designa ted as 

available for sale at the time of their initial recognition; or (ii) do not fit into the other categories of 

financial assets above. They are recognised as non -current assets except where there is an intention to 

sell them within 12 months following  the date of the statement of financial position.  

 

Shareholdings other than shares in Group companies, jointly controlled companies or associated 

companies are classified as financial investments available for sale and are recognised in the statement 

of fi nancial position as non -current assets.  

 

Investments are initially recognised at their acquisition cost. After initial recognition, investments 

available for sale are revalued at their fair value by reference to their market value at the date of the 

statem ent of financial position, without any deduction for transaction costs that may occur until their 

sale. In situations where investments are equity instruments not listed on regulated markets and for 

which it is not possible to reliably estimate their fair value, they are maintained at acquisition cost less 

any impairment losses.  

 

The potential resulting capital gains and losses are recognised directly in reserves until the financial 

investment is sold, received or otherwise disposed of, at which time the ac cumulated gain or loss 

previously recognised in equity is included in the statement of comprehensive income for the year. 

Dividends on equity instruments classified as available for sale are recognised in results for the year 

 

 

Investments Held to Maturity  

  

Investments held to maturity are classified as non -current investments except where they mature in 

less than 12 months from the date of the statement of fi nancial position. This item includes 

investments with defined maturities which the Group has the intention and ability to keep until that 

date. Investments held to maturity are valued at amortised cost, less any impairment losses.  

 

Borrowing and Receivable s 

 

The assets classified in this category are non -derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments not listed on an active market.  

 

Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently valued at amortised cost, 

less adjustments for impairment, where applicable. Impairment losses on customers and accounts 

receivable are recorded where there is objective evidence that they are not recoverable under the 

initial terms of the transaction. The identified impairment losses are  recorded in the statement of 

when the impairment indicators reduce or cease to exist.  

 



 

 

50/ 126  9M14 Consolidated Management Report  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

deposits, term deposits and other investments with maturities of less than three months which may 

be immediately realisable and with a negligible risk of change of value.  

 

For the purposes of the statement of c

 

 

2.9 Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments  

  

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are cla ssified according to their contractual substance 

irrespective of their legal form. Equity instruments are contracts that show a residual interest in the 

recorded at the amount received, net of the costs incurred in their issue.  

 

Borrowings  

 

Loans are stated as liabilities at their nominal value, net of the issuance costs of the loans. Financial 

charges, calculated in accordance with the effective rate of int erest, including premiums payable, are 

recognised in accordance with the accruals principle.  

 

Accounts Payable  

 

Accounts payable are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently at amortised cost in 

accordance with the effective interest rate method. Accounts payable are recognised as current 

liabilities unless they are expected to be settled within 12 months from the date of the statement of 

financial position.  

 

Derivative Financial Instruments  

 

See accounting policy 2.11.  

 

2.10 Impairment of Fina ncial Assets  

 

At the date of each statement of financial position, the Group examines whether there is objective 

evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.  

 

Financial Assets Available for Sale  

 

In the case of financial assets  classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the 

fair value of the instrument below its cost is considered as an indicator that the instrument is impaired. 

If any similar evidence exists for financial assets classified as availa ble for sale, the accumulated loss  
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measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any 

impairment of the financial asset that has already been recognised in results  is removed from equity 

and recognised in the i ncome statement.  

 

Impairment losses on equity instruments recognised in results are not reversed through the income 

statement.  

 

Customers, Other Debtors and Other Financial Assets  

 

Adjustments are made for impairment losses when there are objective indicat ions that the Group will 

not receive all the amounts to which it is entitled under the original terms of the contracts. Various 

indicators are used to identify impairment situations, such as:  

 

a) default analysis;  

b) default for more than 6 months;  

c) financial dif ficulties of the debtor;  

d) probability of insolvency of the debtor.  

 

The adjustment for impairment losses is calculated as the difference between the recoverable value of 

the financial asset and its value in the statement of financial position and is stated in profit and loss for 

the year. The value of these assets in the statement of financial position is reduced to the recoverable 

amount by means of an adjustments account. When an amount receivable from customers and other 

debtors is considered non recovera ble, it is written off using the adjustments account for impairment 

losses. The subsequent recovery of amounts that have been written off is recognised in profit and 

loss.  

  

When there are receivables from customers or other debtors that are overdue, and t hese are subject 

to renegotiation of their terms, these are no longer regarded as overdue and become treated as new 

receivables.  

 

2.11 Derivative Financial Instruments  

 

The Group has a policy of contracting derivative financial instruments with the objective of  hedging 

the financial risks to which it is exposed, resulting from variations in exchange rates and interest rates. 

The Group does not contract derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes, and the use of 

this type of financial instruments co mplies with the internal policies determined by the Board.  

 

In relation to financial derivative instruments which, although contracted in order to provide hedging in 

  Financial 

Instruments: recognition and measurement in terms of their classification as hedge accounting or 

which have not been specifically assigned to a hedge relationship, the related changes in fair value are 

stated in the income statement for the pe riod in which they occur.  
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Derivative financial instruments are recognised on the respective trade date at their fair value. 

Subsequently, the fair value of the derivative financial instruments is revalued on a regular basis, and 

the gains or losses result ing from this revaluation are recorded directly in profit and loss for the period, 

except in the case of hedge derivatives. Recognition of the changes in fair value of hedge derivatives 

depends on the nature of the risk hedged and the type of hedge used.  

 

Hedge Accounting  

 

The possibility of designating a derivative financial instrument as a hedging instrument meets the 

requirements of IAS 39 - Financial instruments: recognition and measurement.  

 

Derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes ca n be classified as hedges for accounting 

purposes where they cumulatively meet the following conditions:  

 

a) At the start date of the transaction, the hedge relationship is identified and formally 

documented, including the identification of the hedged item, t he hedging instrument and the 

evaluation of effectiveness of the hedge;  

b) There is the expectation that the hedge relationship is highly effective at the start date of the 

transaction and throughout the life of the operation;  

c) The effectiveness of the hedge c an be reliably measured at the start date of the transaction 

and throughout the life of the operation;  

d) For cash flow hedge operations, it must be highly probable that they will occur.  

 

Exchange Rate and Interest Rate Risk  

 

Where expectations of changes in exchange rates and interest rates so warrant, the Group aims to 

anticipate any adverse impact through the use of derivatives. Operations that qualify as cashflow 

hedging instruments are stated in the statement of financial position at their fair value and,  where they 

are considered to be effective hedges, the changes in the fair value of the instruments are initially 

stated as a contra entry in equity and subsequently reclassified as financial costs.  

 

Where hedge transactions are ineffective, they are state d directly in profit and loss. Accordingly, in net 

terms the cash flows associated with the hedged operations are accrued at the rate applying to the 

contracted hedge operation.  

 

When a hedge instrument expires or is sold, or when the hedge ceases to fulfi l the criteria required for 

hedge accounting, the accumulated variations in the fair value of the derivative in reserves are shown 

in profit and loss when the operation hedged also affects profit and loss.  

 

2.12 Inventories  

 

Inventories, which mainly include mo bile phones, customer terminal equipment and DVDs, are valued 

at the lower of their cost or net realisable value.  
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The acquisition cost includes the invoice price, freight and insurance costs, using the weighted 

average cost as the method of costing goods s old.  

 

Inventories are adjusted for technological obsolescence, as well as for the difference between the 

purchase cost and the net realisable value, whichever is the lower, and this reduction is recognised 

directly in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.  

 

The net realisable value corresponds to the normal sale price less restocking costs and selling costs.  

 

The differences between the cost and the corresponding net realisable value of inventories, where this 

is less than the cost, are recorde  

 

Inventories in transit, since they are not available for consumption or sale, are separated out from 

other inventories and are valued at their specific acquisition cost.  

 

2.13 Subsidies 

  

Subsidies are recognised a t their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that they will be 

received and Group companies will meet the requirements for their award.  

 

Operating subsidies, mainly for employee training, are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 

income by deduction from the corresponding costs incurred.  

 

Investment subsidies are recognised in the statement of financial position as deferred income.  

 

If the subsidy is considered as deferred income, it is recognised as income on a systematic and rational 

basis during the useful life of the asset.  

 

2.14 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities  

 

Provisions are recognised where: (i) there is a present obligation arising from past events and it is likely 

that in settling that obligation the expenditure of internal resou rces will be necessary; and (ii) the 

amount or value of such obligation can be reasonably estimated. Where one of the above conditions is 

not met, the Group discloses the events as a contingent liability unless the likelihood of an outflow of 

funds resulti ng from this contingency is remote, in which case they are not disclosed.  

 

Provisions for legal procedures taking place against the Group are made in accordance with the risk 

assessments carried out by the Group and by their legal advisers, based on succes s rates.  

 

Provisions for restructuring are only recognised where the Group has a detailed, formal plan 

identifying the main features of the restructuring programme and after these facts have been reported 

to the entities involved.  
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Provisions for decommiss ioning costs, removal of assets and restoration of the site are recognised 

when the assets are installed, in line with the best estimates available at that date (Note 29).  

  

The amount of the provisioned liability reflects the effects of the passage of tim e and the 

corresponding financial indexing is recognised in results as a financial cost.  

 

Obligations that result from onerous contracts are registered and measured as provisions. There is an 

onerous contract when the Company is an integral part of the pro visions of an agreement contract, 

which entail costs that cannot be avoided and which exceed the economic benefits derived from the 

agreement.  

 

Provisions for potential future operating losses are not covered.  

  

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in  the financial statements, unless the exception provided 

under IFRS 3 business combination, and are disclosed whenever there is a good chance to shed 

resources including economic benefits. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial 

statements, b eing disclosed when there is a likelihood of a future influx of financial resources.  

 

Provisions are reviewed and brought up to date at the date of the statement of financial position to 

reflect the best estimate at that time of the obligation concerned.  

 

2.15 Leases 

 

Leasing contracts are classified as: (i) finance leases, if substantially all the risks and benefits incident 

to ownership of the corresponding assets concerned have been transferred; or (ii) operating leases, if 

substantially all risks and rewards  incident to ownership of those assets have not been transferred.  

 

The classification of leases as finance or operating leases is made on the basis of substance rather than 

contractual form.  

 

The assets acquired under finance leases and the corresponding l iabilities are recorded using the 

financial method, and the assets, related accumulated depreciation and pending debts are recorded in 

accordance with the contractual finance plan. In addition, the interest included in the rentals and the 

depreciation of t he tangible and intangible fixed assets are recognised in the statement of 

comprehensive income for the period to which they relate.  

 

In the case of operating leases, the rentals due are recognised as costs in the statement of 

comprehensive income over the  period of the leasing contract.  
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2.16 Income Tax 

 

NOS is covered by the special tax regime for groups of companies, which covers all the companies in 

which it directly or indirectly owns at least 75% of the share capital and which simultaneously are 

resident i n Portugal and subject to Corporate Income Tax (IRC).  

 

The remaining subsidiaries not covered by the special tax regime for groups of companies are taxed 

individually on the basis of their respective taxable incomes and the applicable tax rates.  

 

Income ta x is stated in accordance with the IAS 12 criteria. In calculating the cost relating to income tax 

for the period, in addition to current tax, allowance is also made for the effect of deferred tax 

calculated in accordance with the liability method, taking into account the temporary differences 

resulting from the difference between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their values as stated in 

the consolidated financial statements, and the tax losses carried forward at the date of the statement 

of fin ancial position. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities were calculated on the basis of the 

tax legislation currently in force or of legislation already published for future application.  

  

As stipulated in the above standard, deferred income tax as sets are recognised only where there is 

reasonable assurance that these may be used to reduce future taxable profit, or where there are 

deferred income tax liabilities whose reversal is expected to occur in the same period in which the 

deferred income tax assets are reversed. At the end of each period an assessment is made of deferred 

income tax assets, and these are adjusted in line with the likelihood of their future use.  

 

The amount of tax to be included either in current tax or in deferred tax resulting  from transactions or 

events recognised in equity accounts is recorded directly under those items and does not affect the 

results for the period.  

 

2.17 Share-Based Payments  

 

The benefits granted to employees under share purchase or share option incentive plans are recorded 

in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 2  Share-based payments.  

 

In accordance with IFRS 2, the benefits granted to be paid on the basis of own shares (equity 

instruments), are recognised at fair value at the date of allocation.  

  

Since it is not possible to estimate reliably the fair value of the services received from employees, their 

value is measured by reference to the fair value of equity instruments in accordance with their share 

price at the grant date.  

  

The fair value determined  at the date of allocation of the benefit is recognised as a linear cost over the 

period in which it is acquired by the beneficiaries as a result of their services, with the corresponding 

increase in equity.  
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In turn, benefits granted on the basis of shar es but paid in cash lead to the recognition of a liability 

valued at fair value at the date of the statement of financial position.  

 

2.18 Revenue 

 

 

 

i) Revenues of Telecommunications Services:  

 

Cable Television, fixed broadband and fixed voice: The revenues from services provided using 

the fibre optic cable network result from: (a) basic channel subscription packages that can be 

sold in a bundle with fixed broadband/fixed voice services; (b) premium channel subscription 

packages and S-VOD; (c) terminal equipment rental; (d) consumption of content (VOD); (e) 

traffic and voice termination; (f) service activation; (g) sale of equipment; and (h) other 

additional services (ex: firewall, antivirus).  

 

Satellite Television: Revenues from the satellite television service mainly result from: (a) basic 

and premium channel subscription packages; (b) equipment rental; (c) consumption of content 

(VOD); (d) service activation; and (e) sale of equipment.  

 

Mobile broad band and voice services: Revenues from mobile broadband Internet access 

services and mobile voice services result mainly from monthly subscriptions and/or usage of 

the Internet and voice service, as well as the traffic associated with the type chosen by th e 

client.  

 

Revenue from telecommunications services is counted from the time at which those services 

are provided. Amounts that have not been invoiced for are included based on estimates. The 

differences between the estimated amounts and the actual amount s, which are normally small, 

are recorded in the next financial year.  

 

Discounts granted to clients within fidelization programs are allocated to the entire contract for 

which the client is fidelized. Therefore, the discount is recognised as the goods and services 

are made available to the client.  

 

Profits made from selling equipment are included when the buyer takes on the risks and 

advantages of taking possession of goods and the value of the benefits are reasonably 

quantified.  

 

Revenue from penalties, d ue to the inherent uncertainties, only counts from when it is 

received, and the amount is disclosed as a contingent asset (Note 34).  
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ii) Advertising Revenue: Advertising revenues mainly derive from the attraction of advertising for 

Pay TV channels to whic h the Group has publicity rights and in cinemas. These revenues are 

recognised from when they are received, taken off any discounts given.  

 

iii) Film Showings and Distribution: Distribution revenue pertains to the distribution of films to film 

exhibitors n ot distributed by the Group, that are included in the film showings, whilst income 

from film showings mostly derive from cinema ticket sales and the product sales in the bars; 

the film showings revenue includes the revenue from ticket sales and bar sales r espectively.  

 

iv) Revenue from Producing and Distributing Channel Content: Revenue from production and 

distribution essentially includes the sale of DVDs, the sale of content and the distribution of 

television channels subscriptions to third parties and co unt from the time at which they are 

sold, shown and made available for distribution to telecommunications operators, 

respectively.  

 

2.19 Accruals  

 

are recognis ed as they are generated or incurred, irrespective of when they are received or paid.  

 

The costs and revenues related to the current period and whose expenses and income will only occur 

  

that have already occurred that relate to future periods, which will be recognised in each of those 

periods, for the correspondi ng amount.  

 

The costs related to the current period and whose expenses will only occur in future periods are 

alization. If uncertainty exists related to any of these 

aspects, the value is classified as Provisions (Note 2.14).  

 

2.20  Assets, Liabilities and Transactions in Foreign Currencies  

 

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the functional currency at the exchange rate on 

the transactions dates. On each accounting date, outstanding balances (monetary items) are updated 

by applying the exchange rate prevailing on that date. The exchange rate differences in this update are 

recognised in the statement o f comprehensive income for the year in which they were calculated. 

Exchange rate variations generated on monetary items which constitute enlargement of the 

investment denominated in the functional currency of the Group or of the subsidiary in question are 

recognised in equity. Exchange rate differences on non -
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The financial statements of subsidiaries denominated in foreign currencies are converted at the 

following exchange rates:  

 

¶ The exchange rat e obtaining on the date of the statement of financial position for the 

conversion of assets and liabilities;  

¶ The average exchange rate in the period for the conversion of items in the statement of 

comprehensive income;  

¶ The average exchange rate in the peri od, for the conversion of cash flows (in cases where the 

exchange rate approximates to the real rate, and for the remaining cash flows the rate of 

exchange at the date of the operations is used);  

¶ The historical exchange rate for the conversion of equity ac counts.  

 

Exchange differences arising from the conversion into euros of the financial statements of subsidiaries 

 

 

At 31 December 2013 and 30 September 2014, assets and liabili ties expressed in foreign currencies 

were converted into euros using the following exchange rates of such currencies against the euro, as 

published by the Bank of Portugal:  

 

Exchange Rates 

Final Rate 

 
31-12-2013 30-09-2014

US Dollar 1.3791 1.2583

British Pound 0.8337 0.7773

Mozambique Metical 41.2000 39.6200

Canadian Dollar 1.4671 1.4058

Swiss Franc 1.2276 1.2063

Real 3.2576 3.0821   
 

In the nine months ended at 30 September 2013 and 2 014, the income statements of subsidiaries 

expressed in foreign currencies were converted to euros at the average exchange rates of the 

currencies of their countries of origin against the euro, which are as follows:  

 

Exchange Rates 

Average Rate  

 
9M 13 9M 14

Mozambique Metical 39.6825 41.2729

US Dollar 1.3167 1.3555  
 

2.21 Financial Charges and Borrowings  

 

Financial charges related to borrowings are recognised as costs in accordance with the accruals 

principle, except in the case of loans incurred (whether these are generic or specific) for the 

acquisition, construction or producti on of an asset that takes a substantial period of time (over one 

year) to be ready for use, which are capitalised in the acquisition cost of that asset.  
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2.22 Investment Property  

 

Investment property mainly includes buildings held to generate rents rather than for use in the 

production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary 

course of business. These are measured initially at cost.  

 

Subsequently, the Group uses the cost model for the valuation of investment pro perty since use of the 

fair value model would not result in material differences.  

  

An investment property is eliminated from the statement of financial position on disposal or when the 

investment property is taken permanently out of use and no financial b enefit is expected from its 

disposal.  

 

2.23 Statement of Cash Flows  

 

The statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the direct method. The Group classifies 

r which 

the risk of change in value is negligible. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the balance of 

cash and cash equivalents also include bank overdrafts included in the statement of financial position 

under "Borrowings".  

 

The statement of cash  flows is divided into operating, investment and financing activities.  

 

Operating activities include cash received from customers and payments to suppliers, staff and others 

related to operating activities.  

 

The cash flows included in investment activities  include acquisitions and disposals of investments in 

subsidiaries and cash received and payments arising from the purchase and sale of tangible and 

intangible assets, amongst others.  

 

Financing activities include cash received and payments relating to bor rowings, the payment of 

interest and similar costs, finance leases, the purchase and sale of own shares and the payment of 

dividends.  

 

2.24  Subsequent Events  

 

Events occurring after the date of the statement of financial position which provide additional 

inform ation about conditions that existed at that date are taken into account in the preparation of 

financial statements for the period.  
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Events occurring after the date of the statement of financial position which provide information on 

conditions that occur af ter that date are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, when they 

are materially relevant.  

 

 

3.  Judgements and Estimates  

 

3.1. Relevant Accounting Estimates  

 

make 

judgments and estimates that affect the statement of financial position and the reported results. 

These estimates are based on the best information and knowledge about past and/or present events, 

and on the operations that the Company considers may it  may implement in the future. However, at 

the date of completion of such operations, their results may differ from these estimates.  

 

Changes to these estimates, that occur after the date of approval of the consolidated financial 

statements, will be correct ed in the income statement in a prospective manner, in accordance with IAS 

8 - "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors".  

 

The estimates and assumptions that imply a greater risk of giving rise to a material adjustment in 

assets and liabilities are described below:  

 

Impairment of Non -Current Assets, Excluding Goodwill  

 

The determination of a possible impairment loss can be triggered by the occurrence of various events, 

such as the availability of future financing, the cost of capital  or other market, economic and legal 

changes or changes with an adverse effect on the technological environment, many of which are 

 

 

The identification and assessment of impairment indicators, the estimation of future cash flows and 

the calculation of the recoverable value of assets involve a high degree of judgment by the Board.  

 

Impairment of Goodwill  

 

Goodwill is subjected to impairment tests annually or whenever there are indications of a possible loss 

of value, in accordance with the criteria described in Note 24. The recoverable values of the cash -

generating units to which goodwill is allocated are determined on the basis of the calculation of 

current use values. These calculations require the use of estimates by management.  
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Intangible and Tangible Assets  

 

The life of an asset is the period during which the Company expects that an asset will be available for 

use and this should be reviewed at least at the end of each financial year.  

 

The determination of the useful lives of  assets, the amortisation/depreciation method to be applied 

and the estimated losses resulting from the replacement of equipment before the end of its useful life 

due to technological obsolescence is crucial in determining the amount of amortisation/deprec iation 

to be recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for each year.  

 

concerned, and taking account of the practices adopted by compa nies in the sectors in which the 

Group operates.  

 

The capitalised costs with the audiovisual content distribution rights acquired for commercialisation in 

the various windows of exhibition are amortised over the period of exploration of the respective 

cont racts. Additionally, these assets are subject to impairment tests whenever there are indications of 

changes in the pattern generation of future revenue underlying each contract.  

 

Provisions  

 

The Group periodically reviews any obligations arising from past events which should be recognised or 

disclosed. The subjectivity involved in determining the probability and amount of internal resources 

required to meet obligations may give rise to significant adjustments, either due to changes in the 

assumptions made, or due to the future recognition of provisions previously disclosed as contingent 

liabilities.  

 

Deferred Income Tax Assets  

 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only where there is strong assurance that there will be 

future taxable income available to  use the temporary differences or where there are deferred tax 

liabilities whose reversal is expected in the same period in which  the deferred  tax assets are reversed. 

The assessment of deferred income tax assets is undertaken by management at the end of  each 

period taking account of the expected future performance of the Group.  

 

Impairment of Account Receivables  

 

The credit risk on the balances of accounts receivable is assessed at each reporting date, taking 

isk profile. Accounts receivable are adjusted for the 

assessment made by management and the estimated collection risks at the date of the statement of 

financial position, which may differ from the effective risk incurred.  
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Fair Value of Financial Assets an d Liabilities  

 

When the fair value of an asset or liabilities is calculated, on an active market, the respective market 

assets and liabilities, valuation t echniques generally accepted in the market, based on market 

assumptions, are used.  

  

The Group uses evaluation techniques for unlisted financial instruments such as derivatives, financial 

instruments at fair value through profit and loss, and assets availa ble for sale. The valuation models 

that are used most frequently are discounted cash flow models and options models, incorporating, for 

example, interest rate and market volatility curves.  

 

For certain types of more complex derivatives, more advanced valua tion models are used containing 

assumptions and data that are not directly observable in the market, for which the Group uses internal 

estimates and assumptions.  

 

3.2. Errors, Estimates and Changes to Accounting Policies  

 

During the nine months ended on 30 Sept ember 2013 and 30 September 2014, no material errors 

relating to previous years were recognised. During the year ended 31 December 2013 occurred 

changes of accounting policies, whose impacts have resulted in a restatement of the financial 

statements for th e nine months ended on 30 September 2013. These changes are described in Note 

2.1.. 

 

Additionally, in result of the merger completed on 27 August 2013 (Note 4), the consolidated 

statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of financial pos ition and the 

consolidated statement of cash flows, for the the nine months ended on 30 September 2013, are not 

comparable with the ones for the nine months ended on 30 September 2014. A consolidated pro -

forma statement of comprehensive income is presented  in Note 4 assuming that all the companies 

merged on 27 August 2013 were consolidated at 1 January 2013.  

 

 

4.  Changes in the Consolidation Perimeter  

 

On 27 August 2013, the merger operation by incorporation of Optimus SGPS into ZON occurred, 

through the trans fer of all assets of the company Optimus SGPS to ZON, under the terms of the 

subparagraph a) of paragraph 4 of the Article 97 of the CSC, with effect from the date of the merger.  

 

Following the merger, the Company performed an assessment of the fair value of assets acquired and 

assumed liabilities through this operation. In accordance with IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, the 

preliminary assessment of the fair value of assets acquired and assumed liabilities through this 

operation was subject to changes duri ng the period of one year from the date of acquisition, which 

ended on 26 August 2014 (Note 2).  
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The detail of Optimus Group's net assets and Goodwill identified under this transaction, updated at 30 

September 2014, is as follows:  

 

Fair Value Allocation  

 

BOOK VALUE
ADJUSTMENTS TO 

FAIR VALUE
FAIR VALUE

ACQUIRED ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 17,987 - 17,987

Inventories 19,125  (1,384) 17,741

Accounts receivable and other assets 224,165 - 224,165

Intangible assets 353,331 45,480 398,811

Tangible assets 569,441  (62,616) 506,825

Deferred income tax assets 100,976 25,258 126,234

1,285,025 6,738 1,291,763

ACQUIRED LIABILITIES

Borrowings 452,362 - 452,362

Accounts payable and other liabilities 287,368 15,326 302,694

Provisions 35,224 77,215 112,439

Deferred income tax liabilities 1,142 10,997 12,139

Share plan 6,469 3,144 9,613

782,565 106,682 889,247

TOTAL NET ASSETS ACQUIRED 502,460  (99,944) 402,516

GOODWILL (NOTE 25) 453,888

ACQUISITION PRICE (NOTE 30) 856,404  
 

The fair value of net assets acquired was determined through several valuation methodologies for 

each type of asset or liability, based on the best information available. The main fair value adjustments 

made in this process were: (i) customer portfolio ( 23.4 million euros), which will be amortised linearly 

based on the estimated average time of customer retention; (ii) telecom licenses (12.7 million euros), 

which will be amortised over their the estimated useful life; (iii) infrastructure reconstruction a nd 

replacement equipment costs and other adjustments on basic equipment in the amount of 22.7 million 

euros; (iv) adjustment of 27.7 million euros to carrying amount of the assets falling within by the 

commitments made to the Competition Authority, under t he merger operation, in particular, the 

agreement on an option to acquire the fiber network of Optimus; (v) contingent liabilities related to 

present obligations in the amount of 80.9 million euros, as permitted by IFRS 3, of which a portion, 

corresponding  to tax contingencies, was recorded as a reduction of deferred tax assets (tax losses 

carried forward), and (vi) contractual obligations in the amount of 15.3 million euros related to long -

term contracts whose prices are different from market prices.  
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The methodologies used in the main fair value adjustments were:  

 

Valuation Methodologies and Fair Value Hierarchy  

 

estimates, assumptions and judgments such as: (i

customers used in the valuation of the customer portfolio; (ii) the average time of use of existing 

2G/3G and LTE technologies and revenue growth as a result of the emergence of other new 

technologies, used in the valuation of the telecom licenses, among others. Although these estimates 

were based on the best information available at the date of preparation of the consolidated financial 

statements, current and future results may differ from these estimates.  

 

Several scenarios have been considered in the valuations and the sensitivity analyzes performed have 

not led to significant changes in the allocation of the fair value of assets and liabilities.  

 

For the remaining assets and liabilities were not identified si gnificant differences between the fair 

value and their book value.  

 

As usual on mergers and acquisitions, also in this operation, there was a part of the acquisition price 

which was not possible to allocate to the fair value of some identified assets and l iabilities, that was 

different elements, which cannot be individually quantified and isolated in a viable way and include, for 

example, synergies, qualified  workforce and technical skills.  

 

The contribution of Optimus group companies to the consolidated income for the period ended 30 

September 2013, was positive, of 2,486 thousand euros, corresponding to the period of one month 

(since the control acquisition date on 27 August 2013). This contribution differs from the net income in 

the financial statements prepared by these entities, mainly because of the impacts in amortisation 

related to fair value adjustments and the standardization of certain accounting pol icies. 

 

The detail of the referred contribution, after the elimination of NOS group intercompany transactions, 

is as follows:  

 

Customer portefolios Level 3

Telecom licenses Level 3

Buildings Level 3

Rooftops and towers Level 2

Basic equipment Level 2

Contractual obligations Level 2

VALUATION METHODOLOGIES

Discounted cash flows

Discounted cash flows

Discounted cash flows

Rebuilding costs

Replacement costs

Comparison with today fees charged

FAIR VALUE 

HIERARCHY
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1 Month Contribution  Optimus Group  

for the Nine Months ended 30 September 2013  

 

REVENUES:

Sales and services rendered 54,826

Other operating revenues 1,168

55,994

COSTS, LOSSES AND GAINS:

Wages and salaries 7,491

Direct costs 17,601

Supplies and external services 7,223

Provisions and adjustments  (3,507)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 9,920

Other loss / (gains), net 6,183

44,910

INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL RESULTS AND 
TAXES 11,084

Net other financial expenses / (income) 1,688

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 9,396

Income taxes 6,910

NET CONSOLIDATED INCOME 2,486

AMOUNT

 
 

If the merged companies had been consolidat ed from 1 January 2013, the amounts of consolidated 

operating revenues and net income before non -controlling interests, after elimination of the 

as follows : 

 

9 Months Pro -Forma  NOS Group 

 for the Nine Months ended 30 September 2013  

 

REVENUES:

Sales and services rendered 1,058,158

Other operating revenues 12,387

1,070,545

COSTS, LOSSES AND GAINS:

Wages and salaries 71,458

Direct costs 305,902

Supplies and external services 143,001

Provisions and adjustments 1,302

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 252,561

Other loss / (gains), net 162,361

936,585

133,960

Net other financial expenses / (income) 52,907

81,053

Income taxes 3,980

77,074

AMOUNT

INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL RESULTS AND TAXES

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 

NET CONSOLIDATED INCOME  
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The main variations occurred in the several NOS consolidated financial statements items, result mainly 

from the entry in the consolidation perimeter of the companies merged i n 27 August 2013 (Note 1). 

1 month of operations.  

 

During the nine months ended on 30 September 2014, the changes in the consolidated perimeter were 

as follows:  

 

i) on 15 May 2014 it was constituted NOS Communications S.à.r.l (Annexe A));  

 

ii) on 16 May 2014 the Company completed a merger operation by incorporation of ZON TV Cabo 

Portugal, S.A. in Optimus  Comunicações, S.A., thereafter named NOS Comunicaçõe s, S.A.. This 

 

 

iii) on 24 September  2014, ZON TV Cabo, SGPS, S.A. and ZON Audiovisual, SGPS S.A. merged into 

 any impact on the consolidated 

financial statements ; 

 

to th

may be reduced, until a maximum amount of 5,416 thousand euros, as a result of the gap between the 

present value of the revenues agreed in the contract and the pres ent value of the revenues that will be 

obtained until 31 December 2022.  

 

Following the acquisition, the Company performed a preliminary assessment of the fair value of assets 

acquired and assumed liabilities through this operation. In accordance with IFRS 3 - Business 

Combinations, the preliminary assessment of the fair value of assets acquired and assumed liabilities 

through this operation may be subject to changes during the period of one year from the date of 

acquisition. Nevertheless, the Company does n ot expect significant changes in its financial position as 

a result from any changes to the allocation made.  
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The detail of Mainroad's net assets and Goodwill identified under this transaction, is as follows:  

 

Fair Value Allocation  

 

BOOK VALUE
ADJUSTMENTS TO 

FAIR VALUE
FAIR VALUE

ACQUIRED ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 646 - 646

Accounts receivable and other assets 3,897 - 3,897

Intangible assets 171 910 1,081

Tangible assets 2,438  (70) 2,368

Deferred income tax assets 170 107 277

7,321 947 8,268

ACQUIRED LIABILITIES

Borrowings 1,447 - 1,447

Accounts payable and other liabilities 5,630 - 5,630

Provisions 316 421 737

Deferred income tax liabilities - 250 250

7,393 671 8,064

TOTAL NET ASSETS ACQUIRED  (72) 276 204

GOODWILL (NOTE 25) 12,416

ACQUISITION PRICE (NOTE 30) 12,620

ACQUISITON OF MAINROAD'S DEBT 1,380

TOTAL PAID 14,000  
 

The fair value of n et assets acquired was determined through several valuation methodologies for 

each type of asset or liability, based on the best information available. The main fair value adjustments 

made in this process were: (i) customer portfolio (1.1 million euros), w hich will be amortised linearly 

during 5 years; and (ii) contingent liabilities related to present obligations in the amount of 0.4 million 

euros, as permitted by IFRS 3.  

 

counted cash 

flows model (Level 3 in fair value hierarchy).  

 

For the remaining assets and liabilities there were not identified significant differences between the 

fair value and their book value.  

 

As usual on mergers and acquisitions, also in this operati on, there was a part of the acquisition price 

which was not possible to allocate to the fair value of some identified assets and liabilities, that was 

diffe rent elements, which cannot be individually quantified and isolated in a viable way and include, for 

example, synergies, qualified workforce and technical skills.  

 

The contribution of Mainroad to the consolidated income for the period ended 30 September 20 14 is 

null. If the company had been consolidated from 1 January 2014, the amounts of consolidated 

operating revenues and net income before non -controlling interests, after elimination of the 

s: 
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9 Months Pro -Forma  NOS Group 

 for the Nine Months ended 30 September 2014  

 

REVENUES:

Sales and services rendered 1,025,536

Other operating revenues 12,046

1,037,582

COSTS, LOSSES AND GAINS:

Wages and salaries 64,557

Direct costs 296,693

Support services 67,909

Supplies and external services 137,721

Provisions and adjustments  (5,058)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 252,158

Other loss / (gains), net 99,756

913,736

INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL RESULTS AND 
TAXES 123,846

Net other financial expenses / (income) 44,336

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 79,510

Income taxes 16,243

NET CONSOLIDATED INCOME 63,267

AMOUNT

 
 

 

5. Segment Reporting  

 

The business segments are as follows:  

 

¶ Telco  TV, Internet (fixed and mobile) and voice (fixed and mobile) services rendered and 

includes the following  companies: Be Artis, Be Towering, Per -mar, Sontária, NOS, NOS Açores, 

NOS Communications S.à.r.l., NOS Madeira, NOSPUB, NOS SA, NOS Lusomundo TV, ZON 

Finance B.V., Teliz Holding B.V., Mainroad.  

  

¶ Audiovisual  the supply of video production services and s ales, cinema exhibition and 

distribution and the acquisition/negociation of Pay TV and VOD (video -on-demand) rights and 

includes the following companies: ZON Cinemas, SGPS, S.A., NOS Audiovisual, NOS Cinemas, 

Lusomundo Moçambique, Lda ("Lusomundo Moçambiqu e"), Lusomundo España, SL 

("Lusomundo España"), Lusomundo Imobiliária 2, S.A. ("Lusomundo Imobiliária 2"), Lusomundo 

 Empresa 
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The results by segment for the nine months ended at 30 September 2013 and 2014 are shown below:  

 

Results by Segment  

for the Three Months and Nine Months ended on 30 September 2013  

 

3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13 3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13 3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

Total segment revenue 233,874 588,961 26,915 74,824 260,789 663,785

Inter-segment revenue  (5,044)  (14,161)  (4,152)  (13,272) (9,197) (27,433)

SALES AND SERVICES RENDERED 228,830 574,800 22,763 61,552 251,594 636,351

OPERATIONAL INCOME BY SEGMENT 8,977 66,627 860 2,453 9,837 69,080

Net interest expense and other 12,450 33,789 1,053 2,153 13,503 35,941

Loss / (Gains) in financial assets 800 1,300 5 30 805 1,330

INCOME BEFORE TAXES  (4,273) 31,538  (198) 270 (4,471) 31,808

Income tax expense (3,339) 6,741 49 593 (3,290) 7,335

NET INCOME  (934) 24,797  (247)  (323) (1,181) 24,474

OTHER COSTS:

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 52,683 137,934 7,162 21,511 59,845 159,445

Provisions and adjustments (217) 4,346 18 2,874 (198) 7,220

Costs / (revenues) non-recurrent 31,338 30,933 938 809 32,276 31,741

GROUPTELCO AUDIOVISUALS

  
 

Results by Segment  

for the Three Months and Nine Months  ended on 30 September 2014  

 

3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14 3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14 3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

Total segment revenue 333,321 988,432 24,326 70,251 357,647 1,058,683

Inter-segment revenue  (5,310)  (14,665)  (4,519)  (13,881) (9,829) (28,546)

SALES AND SERVICES RENDERED 328,011 973,767 19,807 56,370 347,818 1,030,137

OPERATIONAL INCOME BY SEGMENT 36,202 122,887 1,446 322 37,648 123,209

Net interest expense and other 14,188 41,163 685 2,135 14,873 43,298

Loss / (Gains) in financial assets (1) 905 12 35 11 940

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 22,015 80,819 749  (1,848) 22,764 78,971

Income tax expense 3,860 17,433 145 (1,307) 4,005 16,126

NET INCOME 18,155 63,386 604  (541) 18,759 62,845

OTHER COSTS:

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 73,095 224,749 8,444 26,893 81,539 251,642

Provisions and adjustments (4,379) (5,009) (48) (91) (4,427) (5,100)

Costs / (revenues) non-recurrent 19,317 34,599 (1,039) (860) 18,278 33,739

TELCO AUDIOVISUALS GROUP

 
 

Inter -segment transactions are performed on market terms and conditions in a comparable way to 

transactions performed with third parties.  

 

Assets and liabilities by segment, as well as investments in tangible fixed assets an d intangible assets 

at 31 December 2013, as a result of the policies changes mentioned on Note 1, are shown below:  

 

Assets and Liabilities by Segment  

at 31 December 2013  

 
NOT

ALLOCATED

Assets 2,729,833 126,137  (144,051) 186,340 2,898,258

Investment in associated companies 29,927 1,687 - - 31,614

TOTAL ASSETS 2,759,760 127,824  (144,051) 186,340 2,929,872

LIABILITIES 735,903 120,682  (144,051) 1,157,126 1,869,659

INVESTMENT IN TANGIBLE ASSETS 143,684 3,067 - - 146,751

INVESTMENT IN INTANGIBLE ASSETS 38,955 26,617 - - 65,572

TELCO
AUDIO 

VISUALS
ELIMINATIONS GROUP
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At 31 December 2013, restated assets and liabilities not allocated to segments ar e reconciled with 

total assets and liabilities as follows:  

 

Assets and Liabilities not allocated to Segments  

at 31 December 2013  

 

ASSETS LIABILITIES

NOT ALLOCATED:

Deferred tax (Note 16) 156,467 15,456

Income tax expense (Note 22) 9,065 -

Borrowings - current (Note 27) - 213,431

Borrowings - non current (Note 27) - 928,239

Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 24) 19,329 -

Non-current assets held-for-sale 678 -

Investment property 801 -

186,340 1,157,126  
 

Assets and liabilities by segment, and investments in tangible fixed assets and intangible assets at 30 

September 2014, are  shown below:  

 

Assets and Liabilities by Segment  

at 30 September 2014  

 
NOT

ALLOCATED

Assets 2,713,290 77,063  (64,909) 163,928 2,889,372

Investment in associated companies 28,212 2,656 - - 30,868

TOTAL ASSETS 2,741,502 79,719  (64,909) 163,928 2,920,241

LIABILITIES 727,478 77,884  (64,909) 1,131,644 1,872,097

INVESTMENT IN TANGIBLE ASSETS 143,754 5,654 - - 149,408

INVESTMENT IN INTANGIBLE ASSETS 62,634 19,829 - - 82,463

TELCO
AUDIO 

VISUALS
ELIMINATIONS GROUP

 
 

At 30 September 2014, assets and liabilities not allocated to segments are reconciled with total assets 

and liabilities as follows:  

 

Assets and Liabilities not allocated to Segments  

at 30 September 2014  

 
ASSETS LIABILITIES

NOT ALLOCATED:

Deferred tax (Note 16) 138,416 16,560

Income tax expense (Note 22) 5,646 -

Borrowings - current (Note 27) - 303,217

Borrowings - non current (Note 27) - 811,867

Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 24) 18,423 -

Non-current assets held-for-sale 678 -

Investment property 765 -

163,928 1,131,644  
 

contributions of the companies merged on 27 August 2013 (Note 4).  
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6. Operating Revenues  

 

Consolidated operating revenues for the three mo nths and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 

and 2014 are distributed as follows:  

 

Consolidated Operating Revenues  

 

3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

SERVICES RENDERED

Telco i) 222,854 564,730 313,627 933,860

Audiovisuals and cinema exhibition ii) 17,733 47,003 15,647 43,410

240,586 611,733 329,274 977,270

SALES:

Telco iii) 3,749 5,903 12,007 28,527

Audiovisuals and cinema exhibition iv) 4,930 14,022 3,856 11,921

8,678 19,925 15,863 40,448

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES:

Telco 2,228 4,167 2,377 11,380

Audiovisuals and cinema exhibition 100 527 304 1,039

2,329 4,694 2,681 12,419

251,594 636,351 347,818 1,030,137

9M 143rd QUARTER 14

 
 

These operating revenues are shown net of inter -company eliminations.  

 

i) This item mainly includes revenue relating to: (a) basic cha nnel subscription packages that can be 

sold in a bundle with fixed broadband/fixed voice services; (b) premium channel subscription packages 

and S-VOD; (c) terminal equipment rental; (d) consumption of content (VOD); (e) traffic and mobile 

and fixed voice termination; (f) service activation; (g) mobile broadband access and (h) other additional 

services (ex: firewall, antivirus).  

 

ii) This item mainly includes:  

a. Box office revenue and publicity at the cinemas of NOS Cinemas.  

b. Revenue relating to film distribut ion to other cinema exhibitors in Portugal and the production 

and sale of audiovisual content.  

 

iii) Revenue relating to the sale of terminal equipment, telephones and mobile phones.  

 

iv) This item mainly includes sales of bar products by NOS Cinemas and D VD sales. 

 

The main changes in the item operating revenues result mainly from the entrance in the consolidation 

scope of the companies merged on 27 August 2013 (Note 4). Therefore, the operating revenue in the 

nine months period ended on 30 September 2013 includes only one month of revenues from the 

merged companies.  
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7. Wages and Salaries 

 

In the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014, this item was composed 

as follows:  

 

Wages and Salaries 

 
3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

Remuneration 13,664 33,221 16,486 46,705

Social taxes 2,751 6,768 4,125 12,221

Social benefits 287 659 331 1,219

Other 190 380 409 981

16,892 41,028 21,351 61,126

9M 143rd QUARTER 14

 
 

In the nine months ended at 30 Septem ber 2013 and 2014, the average number of employees of the 

companies included in the consolidation was 1,442 and 2,366, respectively. At the end of the nine 

months ended at 30 September 2014, the number of employees of the companies included in the 

consolid ation was 2,384.  

 

The main changes in the item wages and salaries result mainly from the entrance in the consolidation 

scope of the companies merged on 27 August 2013 (Note 4). Therefore, the wages and salaries in the 

nine months period ended on 30 Septemb er 2013 includes only one month of costs from the merged 

companies.  

 

 

8. Direct Costs  

 

In the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014, this item was composed 

as follows:  

 

Direct Costs  

 
3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

Exhibition costs 39,446 118,334 37,228 114,066

Traffic costs 23,774 34,877 47,301 135,122

Capacity costs 8,281 19,659 11,448 35,323

Shared advertising revenues 2,263 7,016 2,732 9,332

Others 1,424 3,230 984 3,055

75,188 183,116 99,693 296,898

3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

 
 

The main changes in the item direct costs re sult mainly from the entrance in the consolidation scope 

period ended on 30 September 2013 includes only one month of costs from the merged companies.  
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9. Cost of Products Sold  

 

In the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014, this item was composed 

as follows:  

 

Cost of Products Sold  

 

 

3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

Costs of products sold 4,673 7,444 14,628 34,693

Inventories impairment (266) (584) 272 2,337

4,407 6,860 14,900 37,030

3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

 
 

The main changes in the item cost of products sold result mainly from the entrance in the 

consolida tion scope of the companies merged on 27 August 2013 (Note 4). Therefore, the cost of 

costs from the merged companies.  

 

 

10. Support Services and Supplies and Extern al Services 

 

In the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014, this item was composed 

as follows:  

 

Support Services and Supplies and External Services  

 

 

3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

SUPPORT SERVICES:

   Call centers and customer support 5,430 15,256 8,861 25,194

   Commercial and technical support 4,679 13,837 1,762 10,497

   Information systems 2,409 6,603 3,273 10,920

   Administrative support and other 3,004 6,442 7,811 19,213

15,522 42,138 21,707 65,824

SUPPLIES AND EXTERNAL SERVICES:

   Maintenance and repair 11,987 24,929 8,370 31,478

   Rentals 7,175 17,671 10,432 31,401

   Commissions 2,395 4,115 5,329 15,687

   Professional services 271 7,253 3,550 12,369

   Electricity 2,844 6,478 3,623 12,675

   Installation and removal of terminal equipment 1,256 3,444 1,812 5,023

   Communications 1,814 4,823 2,234 5,883

   Fees 405 963 2,551 5,245

   Travel and accommodation 506 1,181 997 2,686

Other supplies and external services 2,990 8,434 4,624 14,369

31,644 79,291 43,522 136,816

3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

 
 

The changes in the items support services and supplies and external services result mainly from the 

entrance in the consolidation scope of the companies merged on 27 August 2013 (Note 4). Therefore, 

2013 include only one month of co sts from the merged companies.  
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11. Provisions and Adjustments  

 

In the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014, this item was composed 

as follows:  

 

 Provisions and Adjustments  

  
3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

Provisions (Note 29) (3,807) (4,177) (4,249) (4,936)

Impairment of account receivables - trade (Note 21) 3,490 11,313 (301) (568)

Impairment of account receivables - other 122 89 124 407

Debts recovery (2) (6) (1) (3)

 (198) 7,220 (4,427) (5,100)

3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

 
 

 

12. Losses/(Gains) of Affiliated Companies  

 

In the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014, this item was composed 

as follows:  

 

Losses/(Gains) of Affiliated Companies  

 

 

3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

EQUITY ACCOUNTING (NOTE 23)

Sport TV 710 2,627 1,045 1,790

Dreamia 858  (254)  (236)  (868)

Finstar  (2,145)  (4,609)  (4,730)  (12,179)

Mstar  (166)  (311)  (83)  (333)

Upstar  (3)  (12)  (8)  (15)

Other 66 224  (12)  (28)

 (681)  (2,335)  (4,024)  (11,633)

3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

 
 

 

13. Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Losses  

 

In the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 an d 2014, this item was composed 

as follows:  
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Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Losses  

 

  

3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

Industrial property and other rights 19,054 50,631 31,541 95,107

Other intangible assets 415 1,229 579 1,485

19,469 51,860 32,120 96,592

TANGIBLE ASSETS:

Buildings and other constructions 1,437 2,999 2,288 8,085

Basic equipment 34,338 90,971 42,606 131,359

Transportation equipment 276 957 358 781

Administrative equipment 3,757 11,052 3,584 13,167

Other tangible assets 568 1,605 585 1,658

40,376 107,585 49,420 155,050

59,845 159,445 81,539 251,642

3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

 
 

The variations occurred in the items above result from the entrance in the consolidation scope of the 

companies merged on 27 August 2013 (Note 4). Therefore,  depreciation, amortisation and impairment 

the merged companies.  

 

 

14. Financing Costs and Net Other Financial Expenses / (Income)  

 

In the three months and nine m onths ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014, finance costs and other 

net financial costs were composed as follows:  

 

Financing Costs and Net Other Financial Expenses / (Income)  

 

 

3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

FINANCING COSTS:

INTEREST EXPENSE:

Borrowings 7,990 21,595 7,688 24,390

Derivatives 901 2,655 1,248 3,075

Finance leases 1,565 4,502 1,490 4,537

Other 48 98 908 1,553

10,505 28,850 11,334 33,555

INTEREST EARNED: (1,877) (6,587) (2,079) (5,712)

8,629 22,263 9,255 27,843

NET OTHER FINANCIAL EXPENSES / (INCOME)

Comissions and guarantees 3,708 11,135 3,902 11,492

Other 1,115 2,451 1,627 3,864

4,823 13,586 5,529 15,356

3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

 
 

The reduction of the interest earned with deposits results mainly from the de crease of the average 

amount of deposits.  
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15. Losses/(Gains) in Financial Assets  

 

In the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014, this item was composed 

as follows:  

 

Losses/(Gains) in Financial Assets   

 

3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

Impairment losses of FICA Fund (Note 24) 800 1,300 - 900

Other 5 30 11 41

805 1,330 11 940

9M 143rd QUARTER 14

 
 

 

16. Income Tax Expenses 

 

During the nine months ended at 30 September 2014, NOS and its associated companies are subject 

to IRC - Corporate Income Tax - at the rate of 23% (18.4% in the case of NOS Açores), plus IRC 

surcharge at the maximum rate of 1.5% on taxable profit, giving an ag gregate rate of approximately 

24.5%. Following the introduction of the austerity measures approved by Law 66 -B/2012 of 31 

December which set out the 2013 State Budget, this rate was raised in 3% on the amount of a 

on euros and 7.5 million euros, and in 5% on the amount of a 

Additionally , in the measures approving the IRC 

restructuration, published by Law 2/2014 of 16 January, was added a new level to the IRC surc harge 

 

 

The current income tax provision for the mid -term periods, in accordance with IAS 34, was determined 

using the estimated income tax rate, according with the annu al estimated results.  

 

In the calculation of taxable income, to which the above tax rates apply, amounts which are not fiscally 

allowable are added to and subtracted from the book results. These differences between accounting 

income and taxable income may be of a temporary or permanent nature.  

 

NOS is taxed in accordance with the special taxation regime for groups of companies (RETGS), which 

covers the companies in which it directly or indirectly holds at least 75% of their share capital and 

which fulfil th e requirements of Article 69 of the IRC Code.  

 

The companies covered by the RETGS in 2014 are:  

Ĝ NOS (parent company)  

Ĝ Be Artis (included in the RETGS during 2014)  

Ĝ Be Towering (included in the RETGS during 2014)  

Ĝ Empracine  

Ĝ Lusomundo Imobiliária 2  
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Ĝ Lusomundo SI I 

Ĝ NOS Audiovisuais  

Ĝ NOS Cinemas 

Ĝ NOS Lusomundo TV  

Ĝ NOS Madeira (included in the RETGS during 2014)  

Ĝ NOSPUB 

Ĝ NOS SA (ncluded in the RETGS during 2014)  

Ĝ Per-mar (included in the RETGS during 2014)  

Ĝ Sontária (included in the RETGS during 2014)  

 

Under current legisla tion, tax declarations are subject to review and correction by the tax authorities 

for a period of four years (five years in the case of Social Security), except where tax losses have 

occurred (where the period is five or six years) or tax benefits have be en obtained or inspections, 

appeals or disputes are in progress, in which case, depending on the circumstances, the periods are 

extended or suspended.  

 

The Board of Directors of NOS, based on information from its tax advisers, believes that these and any 

other revisions and corrections to these tax declarations, as well as other contingencies of a fiscal 

nature, will not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements as at 30 September 

2014.  

 

A) Deferred Tax  

 

NOS and its associated companie s have reported deferred tax relating to temporary differences 

between the taxable basis and the book amounts of assets and liabilities, and tax losses carried 

forward at the date of the statement of financial position.  
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The movements in deferred tax ass ets and liabilities for the nine months ended on 30 September 2013 

and 2014 were as follows:  

 

Movements in Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities  

for the Nine Months ended on 30 September 2013  

 

INCOME

(NOTE B)

EQUITY

(NOTE 31)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS:

Doubtful accounts receivable 5,342 11,163 511 - 17,016

Inventories 1,490 678  (436) - 1,732

Other provision and adjustments 27,864 68,625 327 - 96,816

Intragroup gains 15,881 18,241  (2,136) - 31,986

Liabilities recorded as part of the allocation of fair value to the 

liabilities acquired in the merger
- 15,700  (115) - 15,585

Derivatives 1,616 - -  (329) 1,288

Fiscal incentives - 11,827 - - 11,827

52,193 126,234  (1,849)  (329) 176,250

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES:

Reavaluation of fixed assets 2,776 - - - 2,776

Capitalization of subscriber acquisition costs 4,712 -  (667) - 4,045

Revaluations of assets as part of the allocation of fair value to the 

assets acquired in the merger
- 10,997 660 - 11,657

Other provisions and adjustments - 1,142 - - 1,142

7,488 12,139  (7) - 19,620

NET DEFERRED TAX 44,705 114,095  (1,842)  (329) 156,630

31-12-2012

RESTATED

CHANGES IN 

THE 

CONSOLIDATED 

SCOPE (NOTE 4)

DEFERRED TAXES

OF THE PERIOD
30-09-2013

RESTATED

  
 

Movements in Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities  

for the Nine  Months ended on 30 September 2014  

 

INCOME

(NOTE B)

EQUITY

(NOTE 31)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS:

Doubtful accounts receivable 16,073 -  (8,013) - 8,060

Inventories 3,216 910 - 4,126

Other provision and adjustments 81,869 149  (6,818) - 75,200

Intragroup gains 27,876 -  (2,077) - 25,799

Liabilities recorded as part of the allocation of fair value to the 

liabilities acquired in the merger
12,347 63  (1,816) - 10,594

Derivatives 693 - -  (27) 666

Incentives 14,393 65  (487) - 13,971

156,467 277  (18,301)  (27) 138,416

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES:

Reavaluation of fixed assets 1,415 -  (1,341) - 74

Revaluations of assets as part of the allocation of fair value to the 

assets acquired in the merger
13,134 250 789 - 14,173

Derivatives - 87 87

Other provision and adjustments 907 - 1,319 - 2,226

15,456 250 767 87 16,560

NET DEFERRED TAX 141,011 27  (19,068)  (114) 121,856

30-09-2014
31-12-2013

RESTATED

CHANGES IN 

THE 

CONSOLIDATED 

SCOPE (NOTE 4)

DEFERRED TAXES

OF THE PERIOD

 
  

At 30 September 2014, the deferred tax assets related to the other provisions and adjustments are 

mainly due: i) impairments and acceleration of amortisations beyond the acceptable fiscally and other 

adjustments in t angible and intangible assets, amounted to 57.5 million euros; ii) temporary 
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differences generated with adjustments of conversion to IAS/IFRS at 31 December 2009, amounted to 

1.7 million euros; and iii) other provisions amounted to 15.9 million euros.  

 

At 30 September 2014, the deferred tax liability related to the revaluation of assets related to the 

allocation of fair value of the assets acquired in the merger is related to the appreciation of  

portfolio, telecommunications licenses and other as sets of Optimus Group companies.  

 

At 30 September 2014 were not recognized deferred tax assets in the amount of 14 million euros 

related to: i) tax losses of 9.9 million euros, originated in the years 2009 and 2013, not recorded due to 

the deduction of tax  provisions (Note 29), ii) tax incentives amounting to 3.7 million euros, and iii) 

temporary differences in the amount of 0.3 million euros.  

 

Deferred tax assets were recognised where it is probable that taxable profits will occur in future that 

may be use d to absorb tax losses or deductible tax differences. This assessment was based on the 

 

 

At 30 September 2014, the tax rate used to calculate the deferred tax assets relating to tax losses 

carried forward was 23%. In the case of temporary differences, the rate used was 24.5% increased to a 

maximum of 2.95% of state surcharge when understood as likely the taxation of temporary differences 

in the estimated period of application o f the state surcharge. Tax benefits, related to deductions from 

taxable income, are considered 100%, and in some cases, their full acceptance is conditional upon the 

approval of the authorities that grants such tax benefits.  

 

Under the terms of current leg islation in Portugal, tax losses generated up to 2009, or in 2010 and 

2011, and from 2012 onwards may be carried forward for a period of six years, four years and five 

years, respectively, after their occurrence and may be deducted from taxable profits gen erated during 

that period, up to a limit of 75% of the taxable profit in 2013 and 70% of taxable profit in the following 

years. 
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B) Effective Tax Rate Reconciliation  

 

In the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014, the reconciliation  

between the nominal and effective rates of tax was as follows:  

 

Reconciliation between the Nominal and Effective Tax Rates  

 

3rd QUARTER 13

RESTATED

9M 13

RESTATED
3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

Income before taxes (4,472) 31,808 22,765 78,971

Statutory tax rate 26.5% 26.5% 24.5% 24.5%

ESTIMATED TAX (1,185) 8,429 5,578 19,348

Permanent differences i) (180) (619) (538) (2,369)

Underestimated/ (Overestimated) corporate tax - 537 (16) (2,760)

Fiscal benefits ii) (2,083) (2,733) (1,575) (2,513)

State surcharge (111) 795 733 3,157

Autonomous taxation 217 651 344 1,031

Provisions (Note 29) - - 92 944

Others 53 275 (612) (712)

INCOME TAX (3,290) 7,335 4,005 16,126

Effective Income tax rate for the period 73.6% 23.1% 17.6% 20.4%

Income tax (4,273) 5,493 (8,471) (2,942)

Deferred tax 983 1,842 12,476 19,068

(3,290) 7,335 4,005 16,126   
 

i) At 30 September 2013 and 2014 the permanent differences were composed as follows:  

 

Permanent Differences  

  

3rd QUARTER 13

RESTATED

9M 13

RESTATED
3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

Equity method (Note 12) (681) (2,335) (4,024) (11,633)

Other - - 1,828 1,962

(681) (2,335) (2,196) (9,671)

26.5% 26.5% 24.5% 24.5%

(180) (619) (538) (2,369)  
 

ii) The applic ation by Group companies of the SIFIDE (Business Research and Development Tax 

Incentives System), a tax benefit introduced by Law 40/2005 of 3 August, of the RFAI (Investment Tax 

Incentive Regime) introduced by Law 10/2009 of 10 March and of the CFEI (Tax Credit for Extraordinary 

Investment) introduced by Law 49/2013 of 16 July. Under the terms of the IRC (Corporate Income Tax) 

Code, the tax paid may not be less than 90% of the amount which would result if the Company did not 

benefit from tax benefits. Ther efore, this amount corresponds to that difference, given that the 

amount is recorded in the controlling company under the Special Taxation Regime for Groups of 

Companies, and the tax benefits are recorded in the controlled companies.  
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17. Earnings per Share 

 

Earnings per share for the three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014 were 

calculated as follow:  

 

Net Earnings Per Share 

 

3rd QUARTER 13 9M 13

RESTATED RESTATED

Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent (1,393) 23,904 18,762 62,438

Number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period 

(weighted average)
384,975,709 334,425,187 513,882,998 514,214,240

Basic earnings per share - euros (0.00) 0.07 0.04 0.12
Diluted earnings per share - euros (0.00) 0.07 0.04 0.12

3rd QUARTER 14 9M 14

 
  

In the presented three months and nine months ended on 30 September 2013 and 2014 there were no 

diluting ef fects on net earnings per share, so the diluted earnings per share are equal to the basic 

earnings per share.  

 

 

18. Dividends  

 

The General Meeting of Shareholders held on 23 April 2014 approved a proposal by the Board of 

Directors for payment of an ordinary di vidend per share of 0.12 euros, totaling 61,819 thousand euros. 

The dividend attributable to own shares amounted to about one thousand euros.  

 

 Dividends 2014  

DIVIDENDS

Dividends 61,819

Dividends of own shares (1)

61,818  

In the first half of 2014, dividends totaling 194 thousand euros were paid to the minority shar eholders 

of NOS Madeira.  

 

The General Meeting of Shareholders held on 24 April 2013 approved a proposal by the Board of 

Directors for payment of an ordinary dividend per share of 0.12 euros, totaling 37,092 thousand euros. 

The dividend attributable to own shares amounted to about 48 thousand euros.  

 

Dividends 2013  

DIVIDENDS

Dividends 37,092

Dividends of own shares (48)

37,044  

In the first half of 2013, dividends totaling 229 thousand euros were paid to the minority shareholders 

of NOS Madeira.  
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19. Financial Assets and Liabilities Classified in Accordance with the IAS 39 

Categories  Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement   

 

The accounting policies set out in IAS 39 for financial instruments were applied to the following items:  

 

Financial Assets and Liabilities Classified in accordance  

with the IAS 39 Categori es at 31 December 2013  

 

 

LOANS AND 

ACCOUNTS 

RECEIVABLE

AVAILABLE-

FOR-SALE 

FINANCIAL 

ASSETS

INVESTMENTS 

HELD-TO-

MATURITY

DERIVATIVES

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 74,380 - - -
Accounts receivable - trade (Note 21) 276,630 - - -
Accounts receivable - other 33,235 - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 24) - 19,329 - -

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 384,245 19,329 - -

LIABILITIES

Borrowings (Note 27) - - - -
Accounts payable - trade (Note 28) - - - -
Accounts payable - other - - - -
Accrued expenses - - - -
Derivatives financial instruments (Note 31) - - - 2,814

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - - - 2,814   

OTHER 

FINANCIAL 

LIABILITIES

TOTAL 

FINANCIAL 

ASSETS AND 

LIABILITIES

NON 

FINANCIAL 

ASSETS AND 

LIABILITIES

TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) - 74,380 - 74,380
Accounts receivable - trade (Note 21) - 276,630 - 276,630
Accounts receivable - other - 33,235 4,937 38,172
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 24) - 19,329 - 19,329

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS - 403,574 4,937 408,511

LIABILITIES

Borrowings (Note 27) 1,141,670 1,141,670 - 1,141,670
Accounts payable - trade (Note 28) 296,715 296,715 108 296,823
Accounts payable - other 70,748 70,748 - 70,748
Accrued expenses 129,901 129,901 - 129,901
Derivatives financial instruments (Note 31) - 2,814 - 2,814

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1,639,034 1,641,848 108 1,641,956
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Financial Assets and Liabilities classified in accordance  

with the IAS 39 Categories at 30 September 2014  

 

LOANS AND 

ACCOUNTS 

RECEIVABLE

AVAILABLE-

FOR-SALE 

FINANCIAL 

ASSETS

INVESTMENTS 

HELD-TO-

MATURITY

DERIVATIVES

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 40,862 - - -
Accounts receivable - trade (Note 21) 311,998 - - -
Accounts receivable - other 24,390 - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 24) - 18,423 - -
Derivatives financial instruments (Note 31) - - - 356

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 377,250 18,423 - 356

LIABILITIES

Borrowings (Note 27) - - - -
Accounts payable - trade (Note 28) - - - -
Accounts payable - other - - - -
Accrued expenses - - - -
Derivatives financial instruments (Note 31) - - - 1,767

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - - - 1,767

 

OTHER 

FINANCIAL 

LIABILITIES

TOTAL 

FINANCIAL 

ASSETS AND 

LIABILITIES

NON 

FINANCIAL 

ASSETS AND 

LIABILITIES

TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) - 40,862 - 40,862
Accounts receivable - trade (Note 21) - 311,998 - 311,998
Accounts receivable - other - 24,390 10,197 34,587
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 24) - 18,423 - 18,423
Derivatives financial instruments (Note 31) - 356 - 356

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS - 396,029 10,197 406,226

LIABILITIES

Borrowings (Note 27) 1,115,084 1,115,084 - 1,115,084
Accounts payable - trade (Note 28) 314,347 314,347 143 314,490
Accounts payable - other 62,226 62,226 - 62,226
Accrued expenses 154,295 154,295 - 154,295
Derivatives financial instruments (Note 31) - 1,767 - 1,767

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1,645,952 1,647,719 143 1,647,862

 

 

Considering its nature, the balances of the amounts to be paid and received to/from state and other 

public enti

in the scope of IFRS 7. 

 

The Board of Directors believes that, the fair value of the breakdown of financial instruments recorded 

at amortised cost or registered at the present value of the payments does not differ significantly from 

their book value. This decision is based in the contractual terms of each financial in strument.  

 

economical and judicial risks, which are described in the Management Report.  
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20. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

At 31 December 2013 and 30 Septembe r 2014, this item was composed as follows:  

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

31-12-2013

RESTATED

Cash 1,085 527
Deposits 13,093 39,348
Other deposits i) 60,202 987

74,380 40,862

30-09-2014

 
i) At 30 September 2014, other deposits have short -term maturities and bear interest at normal 

market rates.  

 

 

21. Accounts Receivable - Trade 

 

At 31 December 2013 and 30 September 2014, thi s item was composed as follows:  

 

Accounts Receivable  Trade 

 

  

31-12-2013

RESTATED

Trade receivables 216,374 247,193
Doubtful accounts for trade receivables 180,609 179,965
Unbilled revenues 60,030 64,805

457,013 491,963

Impairment of trade receivable (180,383)  (179,965)

276,630 311,998

30-09-2014

 
 

Impairment of Accounts Receivable  

 

The summary of movements in impairment adjustments is as follows:  

 

Impairment of Accounts Receivable  

 

  

9M 13

RESTATED

AS AT JANUARY 1 131,763 180,383

Change in the consolidation scope (Note 4) 28,468 137
Increases and decreases (Note 11) 11,313  (568)
Receivables written off and other 1,823 13

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30 173,367 179,965

9M 14
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22. Taxes Payable and Receivable 

 

At 31 December 2013 and 30 September 2014, this item was composed as follows:  

 

Tax Payable and Receivable 

 

 

RESTATED

RECEIVABLE PAYABLE RECEIVABLE PAYABLE

CURRENT

Value-added tax 2,337 17,954 1,401 13,677

Income taxes 9,065 - 5,646 -

Social Security contributions - 1,957 - 1,876

Personnel income tax witholdings - 2,107 - 1,846

Other 428 974 430 428

11,830 22,992 7,477 17,827

NON CURRENT

Tax authorities (Note 34.3) 7,705 - 7,640 -

Provision  (3,479) -  (3,408) -

4,226 - 4,232 -

16,056 22,992 11,709 17,827

31-12-2013
30-09-2014

 
 

At 31 December 2013 and 30 September 2014 the amounts of IRC (Corporate Income Tax) receivable 

and payable were composed as follows:  

 

IRC (Corporate Income Tax)  Receivable and Payable 

 

  

31-12-2013

RESTATED

Estimated current tax on income i)  (7,365) 1,156

Payments on account 12,838 3,286

Withholding income taxes 2,856 692

Other 736 512

9,065 5,646

30-09-2014

 

 

i) the amount relating to the estimated current tax on income was recorded in the following items:  

 

Estimated Current Tax on Income  

 

 


